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Chapter 1

Introduction

A New World Order is being erected and it is the biggest threat humanity has
ever faced. Moreover, it is a menace to each and every one of us individually. It
is a danger to our family, our way of life and our children’s future. You will learn
what it is, who is behind it, what they are doing to achieve it and why, and finally
how we can ensure its destruction.

The bulk of this book consists of names, places and dates. Everything is
documented by mainstream media reports. The level of mainstream citation |
include was not possible ten years ago but it is today because the agenda is so
blatantly in our faces that they have to admit to it. Most of the book concentrates
exclusively on new information that has developed since September 11 2001.
While | do provide background where it is absolutely necessary, the first chapter
for example, many issues are not covered. Things like the Oklahoma City
Bombing or the Kennedy assassination all fit into the same agenda but they have
been so exhaustively documented by other researchers that it would be a waste
of my time to simply re-hash old material. This book is merely one of many keys
that you will need to unlock the truth and so | suggest you read all the information
of the subjects not covered in this book if you haven't already done so.

The hunger, brutality, suffering, genocide and horror that has plagued the third
world is coming to our shores. But it is not set in stone and we can choose to
reverse the evil at any point. Everyone is presented with a chance of influencing
the world in whatever field they excel at. However, many spurn the opportunity
because they are not prepared to risk deviating from the manipulated ‘path’ that
has been set for them.

“Most people can't think, most of the remainder won't think, the small fraction who do think mostly
can't do it very well. The extremely tiny fraction who think regularly, accurately, creatively, and
without self-delusion- in the long run, these are the only people who count.”

- Robert Heinlein

The nature of intelligence as perceived by the conditioned ‘norm’ is judged by
how many numbers you can add together or how many names you can put to
dates. This is not intelligence of mind - it is system of mind. Systems of mind are
like physical machines; they are limited in potential by the intelligence that built
them. Likewise, the systems of mind that masquerade as ‘intelligence’ only
function to the standard of fuel that is fed into them in the first place. Systems of
mind can be changed at any time by the controller of the system (the
government). They can say 2 + 2 = 5 and the vast majority of people will not
guestion it. This proves to us that such systems of mind are not ‘intelligence’
because true intelligence is infinite, whole and unchanging. Remembering all the
events | write about in this book and matching them with dates, names and
places and then telling someone else is not going to get the job done. You need



to couple the hard evidence with your own personal insight and this will reach
others on a level of true intelligence.

Who are ‘they’ and what do ‘they’ want?

What's it all about? The New World Order is not a ‘conspiracy' in the strictest
sense of the term - it is an agenda. The agenda is orchestrated by a power elite
that thinks it has the divine right to commandeer total control of your life.

But who are 'they'? Who are the 'power elite'? The UN, the EU, the Council on
Foreign Relations, the Bilderberg Group, the Trilateral Commission, the
Rockefellers, the Rothschilds, the Royal Institute of International Affairs, the Club
of Rome. The list goes on and there have been many books written that cover
the history of these groups and how they connect to each other. The intention of
this book is to highlight how their unified agenda manifests itself in modern day
developments with particular attention paid to the Hegelian Dialectic. To research
these groups and their unified agenda is to understand who really controls your
destiny and where this planet is heading, unless we speak out against the
agenda itself.

The agenda is a worldwide consolidation and centralization of power into the
hands of an all-encompassing World Government. This system will evolve from
the European Union, (already in place) the American Union, (derived from
NAFTA) and the Asian Union. When these three models are in existence, they
will be merged together to create the One World Government.

The society and control mechanisms they are manufacturing to ‘compliment’ this
World Government combine the most extreme aspects of communism and
fascism, mixed with a nightmare Orwellian technocracy. Specifically (and in no
particular order): a microchipped population; a world army; a world centralized
banking system; the utter destruction of all national identity and pride; the
destruction of all religion except their own 'world religion'; the ability to control
each and every person through means of mind control (interlocked with the
microchip); to bring an end to all industrialization; to seize control of the
environmental movement at the top of the power structure and use it for the
purposes of continental land-grabs; to initiate a program of population control (via
warfare, vaccination, starvation and diseases) whereby 80% are ‘terminated’; to
encourage and eventually legalize the use of drugs and to make pornography
and other expressions of hedonism an 'art form'; to suppress all scientific
development except that which aids their agenda (an example being cold fusion
and other technologies that would end our dependency on fossil fuels); to
demoralize humanity and breed culture to become more and more decadent
(meaning when the sick and absurd becomes acceptable) - this is achieved via
drugs, pornography, mindless television, degenerate rock, pop, rap, hip-hop
music, among a host of others; to encourage multiculturalism, immigration, and
to brand anyone who opposes these issues as 'racist’; to make pedophilia, rape
and sexual conquests acceptable and respectable; to cause total collapse of the



world's economies and engender political chaos; to penetrate and subvert all
governments and coerce them into destroying their country's national
sovereignty; to take control of education in the developed world with the intention
of suppressing non-consensus information and pushing left-wing, liberal,
socialistic viewpoints (Socialism masquerades as a movement of the
downtrodden masses but is in fact clearly an attempt at consolidating wealth and
power by the elite); to use terrorism or 'scareorrism' as a means of gaining the
consent of the public, who which actually support this agenda and give up their
basic rights if it is presented as the solution to terrorism.

There are many caveat goals within this agenda that fall under the umbrella of
those mentioned above. You will notice many of these goals have already been
achieved.

Ways in which to defeat the agenda are covered later in this book but the main
one is simply to know what the agenda is and tell others how it directly affects
them. This will stir people from their apathy and make them realize they are
under attack. Their survival mechanism will kick in, they will become educated on
the issues and they will wake their fellow human. Remember - those who fought
and died for freedom in the American Revolution only had 5% of the population
on their side. To avoid having to die for freedom, we need to win the war of
information.

The New World Order Goes Primetime

In the last few years we have seen what some call the externalization of the
hierarchy. In other words, the mainstream media has actually reported that there
is an agenda to create a global government and it is being implemented by
secret societies. One of the most powerful known secret societies is Skull and
Bones, which was set up by William H. Russell in the 1830’s and is based on an
offshoot of the eighteenth-century society, the Illuminati. It is based at Yale
University and calls itself The Brotherhood of Death. George W. Bush admits to
being a member in his own autobiography. In April 2001 journalists for ABC
News and the New York Observer were able to flm members enacting mock
throat-cutting rituals,

Most of the speculative lore about the Skull and Bones ritual has centered on its death fixation.
Beyond the obvious skull-and-crossbones insignia, of course, the most persistent story is that
initiates spend their senior year in the basement crypt of the Bones Tomb taking turns lying in a
coffin and, in two long, intense, psycho-drama autobiographical sessions in said coffins, recount
their personal and sexual history to the other 14 chosen ones. The better to bond for life with
those they know best and prepare for their destiny as stewards of the ruling class.

! ‘At Skull and Bones, Bush's Secret Club Initiates Ream Gore’ - Ron Rosenbaum — The New York Observer — April 23
2001 - http://www.nyobserver.com/pages/story.asp?ID=4136




[INSERT FIG 1.1] [CAPTION: The Tomb, the home of the Skull and Bones Society at Yale in
New Haven, Connecticut.]

The 2004 election will likely see George W. Bush run against another Skull and
Bones member, John Kerry. A few years ago, anyone who talked about Skull and
Bones was a ‘conspiracy theorist’ — nowadays it's calmly reported on by USA
Today,

Bonesmen have long helped Bush; he received a fair chunk of his early business financing from
them and turned to them for help when he needed a job, investors and campaign assistance.
Even his baseball-team purchase involved at least one Bonesman. As president, Bush has
appointed fellow Bonesmen to high-level positions, such as Edward McNally, the general counsel
of the Office on Homeland Security and senior associate counsel on national security. Yet,
although one of his first social gatherings at the White House was a Skull and Bones reunion,
Bush feigned ignorance when asked recently about Bones: "The thing is so secret that I'm not
even sure it still exists," he replied.

The Bilderberg Group is one of the premier organizations in the manipulation of
global developments. There are doubtless many higher-level groups that we are
not aware of.

Every year since 1954, the secretive Bilderberg Group (named after the hotel
they first met in the Netherlands), comprising elite powerbrokers from Europe
and North America, has met to discuss, and influence, the changing global,
political, economic and social landscape.

In the early 1990s, a relatively unknown Home Affairs spokesman for the Labour
Party, Tony Blair, was invited to a Bilderberg confab. By 1997, he was Prime
Minister of Great Britain. Similarly, in the late 80's, a little known Governor of
Arkansas by the name of William Clinton gladly accepted an invitation to a
Bilderberg. A few years later he was leader of the so-called 'free' world.

William Hague was the Bilderberg member who provided the shill, phony
‘opposition' to Tony Blair at the last general election. He forwarded a weak anti-
European posture that failed dismally. This equated any anti-European (anti-
Orwellian power block) mindset as being outdated and smeared with
preconceptions of association with the laughable Tory election campaign. Europe
is good and loving, sovereignty is evil, right wing, racist and outdated. It's true; |
read it in the newspaper. And who owns the newspapers? The Bilderberg Group.

Surely senior officials of the World Trade Organization, Federal Reserve,
Financial Institutions like Rockefeller (the man himself), the EU and UN World
Government models, and corporate oil conglomerates couldn't belong to the
same group as the leading politicians and the media? Well, they do. They all
belong to the Bilderberg Group.

2 ‘White House Bonesman leads nation into the dark’ — Alexandra Robbins — USA Today — September 25 2002 -
http://www.usatoday.com/news/opinion/editorials/2002-09-25-opcom_x.htm




So, who belongs to the other quasi-secret steering organizations such as the
Council on Foreign Relations and the Trilateral Commission? The same people.

| list below a summary of Bilderberg members. This is by no means an
exhaustive list. There are over 50 members who refuse to be named. These
representatives attended the June 2000 meeting in Belgium at the Chateau du
Lac Hotel in Genvel, near Brussels. The group releases a short press statement,
outlining their operation to have a good old think about things but not implement
any policy. So when the show is over these elite powerbroker mainstream policy
makers just go home and have a cup of tea. I'm being sarcastic, by the way.

Key - A=Austria, B=Belgium, CDN=Canada, D=Germany, DK=Denmark,
E=Spain, F=France, FIN=Finland, GB=Great Britain, GR=Greece,
INT=International, I=ltaly, IRL=Ireland, NL=Netherlands, S=Sweden,
USA=United States of America.

The Members and who they Represent
Financial Institutions

--- USA: David Rockefeller - Chairman, Chase Manhattan Bank International
Advisory Council.

--- USA: Jessica T. Mathews - President, Carnegie Institute for International
Peace (disarming the serfs).

--- USA: George Soros - Chairman, Soros Fund Management.

--- USA: Henry A. Kissinger - Chairman, Kissinger Associates.

UN and EU Representatives

--- INT: Carl Bildt - Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for the Balkans,
United Nations.

--- INT: Louise Frechette - Deputy Secretary-General, United Nations.

--- A: Wolfgang Petritsch - European Union Chief Negotiator at the Kosovo
Peace Talks in Rambouillet and Paris.

--- INT: Javier Solana - Secretary-General, Council of the European Union.

Banking

--- INT/USA: James D. Wolfensohn - President, World Bank.

--- USA: William J. McDonough - President, Federal Reserve Bank of New York.
--- F: Jean-Claude Trichet - Governor, Banque de France

--- INT: Tommaso Padoa-Schioppa - Member of the Executive Board, European
Central Bank.

--- DK: Nyboe Andersen - Governor, Central Bank of Denmark.

--- D: Hilmar Kopper - Chairman of the Supervisory Board, Deutsche Bank AG.



Governmental

--- USA: James B. Steinberg - Deputy Assistant to the President for National
Security Affairs.

--- USA: John M. Deutch - Institute Professor, MIT, and former Director, Central
Intelligence Agency (CIA).

--- USA: Bill Richardson - Secretary of Energy.

--- NL: Dick Benschop - State Secretary for European Affairs.

--- GB: Kenneth Clarke - Conservative MP

--- USA: Christopher J. Dodd - Senator, Democrat, Conneticut.

--- USA: Chuck Hagel - Senator, Republican, Nebraska

--- FIN: Paavo Lipponen - Prime Minister.

--- DK: Anders Rasmussen - Chairman, Liberal Party.

Media

--- USA: Donald E. Graham - Publisher, the Washington Post.

--- CDN: Conrad Black - Chair, Telegraph Group Ltd.

--- D: Matthias Nass - Deputy Editor, Die Zeit.

--- I: Gianni Riotta - Deputy Editor, La Stampa.

--- DK: Toger Seidenfaden - Editor, Politiken.

--- GB: Matrtin Wolf - Associate Editor/Economics Commentator, The Financial
Times.

--- GB: John R. Micklethwait - United States Editor, The Economist.

--- GB: Adrian D. Wooldridge - Foreign Correspondent, The Economist.

Corporate and Trade

--- INT: Mike Moore - Director-General, World Trade Organization.

--- NL: Jeroan van der Veer - Group Managing Director, Royal Dutch Shell group
of companies, and Designate President, Royal Dutch Petroleum Company.

--- GB: Matrtin J. Taylor - Chairman, WH Smith Group PLC, and International
Adviser, Goldman Sachs International, Honorary Secretary-General - Bilderberg
Group.

--- IRL: Peter D. Sutherland - Chairman, Goldman Sachs International and
Chairman, BP Amoco PLC.

--- USA: John L. Thornton - President and CEO, Goldman Sachs Inc.

--- I: Giovanni Agnelli - Honorary Chairman Fiat SpA.

--- FIN: Jorma Ollila - Chairman of the Board and CEO, Nokia Corporation.

--- USA: James A. Johnson - Chairman and CEO, Johnson Capital Partners.

--- S: Leif Johansson - President and CEO, Volvo AB.

--- USA: Esther Dyson - Chairman, EDventure Holdings Inc.

--- S: Percy Barnevik - Chairman, Investor AB.

--- CDN: Israel Asper - Chairman, CanWest Capital Group Inc.

--- USA: Paul Allaire - Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO, Xerox
Corporation.



Royalty

--- NL: Queen Beatrix - Her Majesty, the Queen of the Netherlands and of the
House of Orange.

"In politics, nothing happens by accident. If it happens, you can bet it was planned that way."
Franklin D Roosevelt

Understanding the Hegelian Dialectic

George Wilhelm Friedrich Hegel was born in 1770 in Germany and became a
successful philosopher of the mind, history and religion during the 1820's.
Although the Hegelian Dialectic today manifests itself differently to how it
originated under Hegel, the founding principles remain.

Hegel proposed that all spiritual, intellectual and historical development (whether
negative or positive) progressed from the outcome of two opposing ideals. Thesis
clashed with antithesis and this produced synthesis. The modern day application
of the dialectic is used by the ruling elite to create mass groupthink that enables
them to further their agenda without opposition. In its simplest form, it is
brainwashing. In the past, the dialectic has been used to manufacture war. Both
the Bolsheviks and the Nazis were funded and supported by the global elite.
These two forces were then made to clash in order to foment the chaos of world
war two.

The widely used term amongst researchers today is ‘Problem-Reaction-Solution’
and the tactic is mainly used to oppress populations, advance the police state
and further the geopolitical aims of the New World Order. It works like this — the
manipulating body covertly creates a problem and then directs the media to
incessantly focus on it without recourse. Remember, you only need to control the
top of the pyramid — most media coverage is an exercise in regurgitating what
the big newspapers and T.V. stations are reporting. The problem could be
anything — a war, a financial collapse, a rash of child abductions, or a terrorist
attack. The power of the media can create the false perception that a big problem
exists, even if it doesn’t. An example would be the child abduction ‘epidemic’
during 2002, which was dramatized by the media even though official figures
confirmed that child abductions have been decreasing yearly since the 70’s.
Another example is the SARS ‘epidemic’ of 2003 which was a story created
solely out of media hype. SARS killed a few hundred in a few months (at time of
press) while the common flu kills 250,000 a year.

Once you have created this problem you make sure that an individual, a group or
an aspect of society is blamed. This then rallies the population behind the
desperate lunge for a solution to the problem. ‘Something must be done! they
cry in unison. The people that created the problem in the first place then come
back in and offer the solution that the people demand. Remember — the people



screaming for a solution do not know that the problem was artificially created in
the first place.

The solution to the problem is always a further curtailment of freedom and an
advancement of one or more aspects of the New World Order agenda — whether
that is geopolitical expansion, new laws or the implantation of new societal
worldviews. Let’s look at a few examples.

A terrorist attack hits America. Even though authorities claim they had no
possible inclination that such an attack would happen, the culprits for the attack
are named within hours of the event before any type of investigation has been
concluded. The pictures of these culprits and their leader are flashed ad infinitum
on worldwide television therefore immediately providing the ‘official version of
events’. The horror of the attack is so substantial that people immediately call for
a restriction of personal freedoms and a foreign war to stop it from happening
again. In the weeks and months that follow, the government of America restricts
personal freedoms through legislation and launches a foreign war.

| just described September 11.

A government arms a small country with chemical and biological weapons which
it then uses against another country. A few years later, the government that
armed the country with chemical and biological weapons tells its people that
there is a problem because a small country has chemical and biological weapons
which it might use against another country. Despite some oppaosition, many
people agree that the small country should be bombed and invaded. The
government tells its army to bomb and invade the small country.

| just described the first Gulf War and the 2003 war on Iraqg.

The media tell the people that child abduction is on the increase and is becoming
a big problem. Pictures of young innocent children and footage of their crying
parents are flashed on television nationwide. The tragedy of these events is so
heart-wrenching that people immediately call for parents to be licensed, stronger
power for the emergency takeover of communications to alert people when a
child is abducted, and implantable microchips that can track children for their
safety. The government introduces emergency legislation and a government-
affiliated company announces that they have developed an implantable tracking
chip.

| just described the child abduction flap of 2002.

Understanding the Problem-Reaction-Solution paradigm and how it is being used
to steer the world towards a prison planet is the basis of this book. The name of
the game is order out of chaos. Keep this system in mind as you digest each
piece of information and the reality of modern day developments will be revealed



before your eyes.



Chapter 2

The History of Tyrants: A Lesson From the Past

History is replete with examples of tyrants, dictatorships and even apparently
accountable governments using the Hegelian Dialectic discussed in the
introduction. None of them can resist killing innocent people to further a political
agenda. In this context, ruling authorities, in order to ruthlessly centralize power
into their own hands have used a tactic conventionally ascribed to terrorists.

Nero Fiddled While Rome Burned

Nero Claudius Caesar was, by far, one of the most infamous Roman emperors
ever. His rule of Rome lasted from AD 54 to 68. A little known fact is that Nero
actually began his reign as a fairly popular leader, banning capital punishment,
reducing taxes, and letting slaves bring lawsuits against their masters.

However, after around five years, Nero’s temperament fell apart. His senior
advisors began to die and his overbearing ego came to the fore. Absolute power
began to corrupt absolutely. Even before Rome burned, Nero passed a series of
treason laws, which put anyone to death who was considered a threat. This
enabled him to eliminate his political rivals and even his own wife and mother.

Nero needed a pretext to justify turning the new laws against the civilian
population and specifically the Christians who, although still relatively unpopular,
were rising in prominence. The Christians lambasted the empire for its decadent
practices and Pagan worship.

On the night of July 18, 64 AD, a fire started that would, after a week, turn 70% of
Rome to ash. Historians differ as to whether or not Nero was actually in Rome
when the disaster began. Certainly, Nero returned to his palace as the fire roared
at its peak. He composed poetry and sang as his people burned to death. This is
where the saying ‘Nero fiddled while Rome burned’ came from.

While Nero fiddled, he had ordered his guards to patrol the streets making sure
efforts to extinguish the blaze were thwarted. Attempts to do so were prevented
by Nero’s menacing gangs. Torches were openly thrown in to fan the flames, by
men crying that they acted under orders.

These actions caused a rumor to circulate the city, namely that Nero himself had
started the blaze. Whether he had given the order to start it or simply let it burn is
debatable but the consequences are not. Nero immediately blamed the
Christians for setting the fire. His only evidence was that Christians had identified
other Christians as the perpetrators. This was after they were brutally tortured to
make such a confession of course. Since the fires began in the poor area of the



city, it isn’t logical to suspect the Christians. They lived in those poor areas. If
they wanted to make a statement why would they burn down their own homes
and not Nero’s palace?

Nero was the only person who stood to gain from setting the city ablaze. He
hated the disjointed layout of the city and wanted to rebuild it in his own image.
As soon as the fires were put out, work began on a total redesign of the city
along with several new palaces in Nero’s honor. Meanwhile, the Christian
scapegoats were ripped limb from limb by the lions in the circus and used as
human torches. Nero had achieved two aims by burning Rome or at least
allowing it to burn. He had completely renovated the city and eliminated an
underground threat to both his authority and his ego. Nero’s short-term future
was secured. However, his act of tyranny brought about divine retribution. The
horrific treatment of the Christians turned them into martyrs, such as Peter and
Paul. The people of Rome began to sympathize with their suffering and Nero’s
empire self-destructed after his suicide in AD 68.

Diocletian’s Unity in the Empire

The Roman Emperor Diocletian came to power in 284 AD. He was an army
general with a repressive disdain of his subjects. Diocletian ran his government
as a general runs an army, giving orders and expecting them to be carried out.
He believed that only severe restrictions on personal freedoms could bring order
to the empire. By 301 AD, after the conclusion of conflicts with the Germans and
the Sassanids, Diocletian needed a new enemy to justify his tyrannical form of
government. At the same time, the Emperor declared the economy to be in crisis
and implemented astronomical taxation increases. Amongst the people there
surfaced a gradual unrest towards Diocletian's economic policy. The Emperor
needed a new enemy to regain the support of his pseudo-slaves.

After the earlier successful persecution of the Manichaeans, Diocletian slowly
turned his head in the direction of the Christians, his thumb pointing down. This
came despite the fact that he had largely ignored them for the past fifteen years.
Across the empire, Christians made up around ten percent of the population,
their number having doubled in about fifty years. Two kings had been converted:
the king of Osroene in northeastern Mesopotamia and the king of Armenia.
Christians were serving in Rome's armies, and they were working as civil
servants in local government or in lowly positions on the imperial staff. Diocletian
could see his scapegoat.

In the autumn of 302 AD Diocletian visited Antioch in Syria for an official
engagement. Prior to this of course, there had to take place the customary
Pagan sacrifice. However, this time there was a problem. As the bloodletting
ritual began, so did the vocal denouncements of the onlooking Christians. Many
made cross signs to ward off the evil influence of the sacrifice. Prominent
amongst these brave dissenters was a Christian named Romanus. Diocletian



fumed,

In the first, while Diocletian was sacrificing in public, the chief interpreter of the victims' organs
reported that he could not read the future in them because of the hostile influence of Christians
standing around. Diocletian burst into a rage, insisting that all in his court should offer sacrifice,
and sent out orders to his army to follow suit.!

This provided Diocletian with the perfect opportunity to launch his persecution.
Romanus had his tongue cut off and languished in agony for over a year after in
jail. Meanwhile, the Emperor demanded the Christians sacrifice to the gods of the
state or face execution. Many refused and further retreated underground in the
hope of avoiding the manic dictates of this mad general.

Diocletian's vice-emperor, Galerius, didn't have a hard time in persuading him
that if a Palace were just to burn down, Diocletian could really accelerate his
crusade against the Christians. Just by coincidence, twice within sixteen days
toward the end of February, Diocletian's palace in Nicomedia burned. The
Christians were immediately blamed.

[INSERT FIG 2.1] [CAPTION: The Emperor Diocletian needed a crisis to put the purge of the
Christians into overdrive. This was accomplished when he had his guards set fire to his own
palace in Nicomedia on two different occasions at the end of February 303 AD.]

A monumental crackdown then occurred as Diocletian issued four edicts against
the Christians. Christian assemblies were forbidden. Bibles were confiscated and
burned, and churches were destroyed. Christians were torn limb from limb in the
arena, the animals goaded on by a mindless population who had accepted at
face value the guilt of the Christians. Others were imprisoned and offered release
if they appeased the Emperor's sick Pagan blood lust and made one sacrifice.
The majority refused, yet Diocletian wanted disunity within the Christian ranks
and so had some marked down as having made a sacrifice, even though they
didn't.

The purges slowly and intermittently dragged on into the year 305, but by now
the Christians had become too numerous across the empire to be wiped out. The
despot Diocletian retired through illness in 305 AD. The vice-emperor in the east,
Galerius, began a joint rule of the empire with the vice-emperor in Rome and the
west: Constantius. Constantius died in battle in 306 AD and his son, Constantine,
succeeded him. The thousands of Christians butchered by Diocletian in the
purge had not died in vain. Constantine was to change the world by becoming
the first Christian emperor.

Balance of Power — Hitler and the Reichstag

! Ramsey McMullen — Constantine — page 24 — Dial Press - 1969



Adolf Hitler knew that he could never overthrow the existing German Republic
and name himself Fuhrer without the aid of a carefully stage managed crisis. In
early 1933 the German Weimar Republic was awash with different parties
lobbying for control. Although the Nazi’'s had the majority, this was not enough to
give Hitler the unchallenged and unaccountable office he craved. Furthermore,
the Nazi's were losing momentum in the months preceding the election, which
was set for March 1933.

When Herman Goering took control of the Prussian state police, he replaced
officers loyal to the Republic with officers loyal only to Hitler. These SA and SS
were trained to despise so-called enemies of the state and after raiding
Communist headquarters in Berlin they acquired a full roster of Communist Party
members. The round up list was already in place. Hitler had erected the police
state he would later put to use in anticipation of the imminent burning of the
Reichstag.

In February of 1933, Herman Goering, Joseph Goebbels and Hitler finalized a
plan to cause chaos by burning the Reichstag parliament building and then
blaming it on their political adversaries, the Communists. The three had obviously
studied the actions of Nero hundreds of years before. In the week preceding
February 27, a mentally retarded Dutchman named Marinus van der Lubbe
wandered around Berlin attempting to set fire to government buildings. The state
police, now under Hitler’s control, refused to arrest him.

After stalking the area all day, on the night of February 27, van der Lubbe
somehow managed to break in the guarded Reichstag. He removed his shirt and
set it on fire, vainly attempting to spread the relatively confined blaze to a wider
area within the building. He received a large dose of help when Hitler's storm
troopers, led by SA leader Karl Ernst, used an underground passageway that
connected Goering’s cellar with the cellar in the Reichstag. They entered the
building and scattered gasoline and incendiaries to feed the flames. Once they
had suitably increased the blaze they escaped back through the tunnel.

Hitler and Goebbels, his propaganda minister, immediately rushed to the scene
of the fire and screamed at German news reporters that the Communists were to
blame. Hitler stated, "You are now witnessing the beginning of a great epoch in
German history...This fire is the beginning,” and from this moment onwards the
official story of the ‘Communist plot’ was repeated ad infinitum across the world’s
media. Hitler called for the activation of the round-up plans he had arranged
before the burning,

"The German people have been soft too long. Every Communist official must be shot. All
Communist deputies must be hanged this very night. All friends of the Communists must be
locked up. And that goes for the Social Democrats and the Reichsbanner as well!"?

2 ‘The Reichstag Burns’ — The History Place — 1996 - http://www.historyplace.com/worldwar2/riseofhitler/burns.htm




The very next day, Hitler was able to pass an emergency decree, Article 48 of
the Weimar Constitution, which stated,

Restrictions on personal liberty, on the right of free expression of opinion, including freedom of
the press; on the rights of assembly and association; and violations of the privacy of postal,
telegraphic and telephonic communications and warrants for house searches, orders for
confiscations as well as restrictions on property, are also permissible beyond the legal limits
otherwise prescribed.?

As the Communists and other ‘enemies of the state’ were arrested and tortured,
Hitler turned his attention to the March 5th elections. Despite massive waves of

propaganda, the Nazis only achieved 44 per cent of the total vote. Hitler needed
a two-thirds majority in order to legally dismantle the Republic and install himself
as Fuhrer.

[INSERT FIG 2.2] [CAPTION: The Reichstag burns, Hitler takes control.]

After the elections, Hitler used his emergency decree, along with the SS and SA,
to raid the offices of local government and throw out anyone unsympathetic to
the Nazi regime, replacing them with those loyal only to him. This is how he
would subsequently achieve the majority he needed to become dictator. In the
meantime, Hitler pressured President Hindenburg to sign more draconian edicts,
making it an offence to criticize the Nazis and setting up military tribunals where
the defense is afforded no jury or legal counsel. These measures steamrolled
many Reichstag members into intimidation and ensured their support through
fear.

On March 23 the newly elected Reichstag met in the Kroll Opera House in Berlin
and passed Hitler's Enabling Act. This allowed Hitler to basically abolish the
German constitution and proclaim himself legal dictator. Hitler's carefully
managed brutal police state tactics had ensured more than two thirds were
frightened enough to pass the act. The Nazis had the majority they needed and
could now build the dreaded Third Reich. This dictatorship would never have
occurred if Hitler hadn’t eliminated his enemies and the German Republic by
burning the Reichstag in February 1933.

Treason at Pearl Harbor

On the Sunday morning of December 7 1941, against the Pearl Harbor naval
base in Hawaii, Japanese Adm. Chuichi Nagumo's Operation Z carrier task force
launched its attack that destroyed nearly 200 American aircraft, sank five
battleships, severely damaged three cruisers, three destroyers and three
auxiliaries, and killed 2,476 U.S. servicemen and civilians.

3 ‘The Decrees of 1933’ - http://web.jjay.cuny.edu/~jobrien/reference/ob60.html




In 1941 the U.S. believed that war with Japan was inevitable and that the United
States should provoke it at a time that suited its own interests. Analysts
recommended an eight-point plan, known as the McCollum Memo, designed to
provoke a Japanese attack. The plan included military provocations and a
recommendation to completely embargo all trade with Japan in collaboration with
a similar embargo by the British Empire.

The US cited Japan’s continued wars on the Asian mainland as the reason for
placing embargoes (mainly oil) on them. The real reason behind such measures
was that America knew this would force Japan into an attempted seizure of oil
and mineral riches in Indonesia. In order to do this, the Japanese would have to
nullify the threat of the American fleet stationed at Pearl Harbor. In order to
enrage the American public into supporting the war effort that the American
government sought to engage in, President Franklin Roosevelt needed to ensure
that Japan’s first strike seemed as dramatic, surprising and bloody as possible.

As a consequence, Roosevelt kept many in the dark as to what his administration
was hatching. Even some of his own commanders in Hawaii never knew what
was coming, that way Pearl Harbor would be written into the history books as
one of the most shocking and unprovoked acts of war. As the world went about
its unwitting business, the propaganda was being carefully prepared for the
events that were about to take place. Soon enough, the psychological war would
also kick into operation on American soil, and the mindset of the American public
forever altered.

To emphasize how desperate the Roosevelt administration were to enter the first
world war, the Scotsman reported that hundreds of former prisoners of war in the
Philippines were deliberately blocked from leaving the country by order of the
then American President, so their capture by the Japanese could be used as
propaganda in the U.S. to stoke war fever,

A former prisoner has uncovered papers in the US National Archive that she claims prove the
government restricted the travel of 7,000 American citizens from the Philippines, while at the
same time encouraging evacuation of Americans from other potential Japanese targets in China
and south-east Asia.

A federal lawsuit filed yesterday in Washington, DC, alleges that the government at first wanted to
keep Americans in the Philippines to discourage Japanese aggression, but later used them as a
political tool.

A group of 500 former prisoners claim the plan was devised by the US wartime leader, Franklin D
Roosevelt, with the approval of Winston Churchill, Britain’s Prime Minister, to cause outrage
among American citizens unwilling to back a war on Japan.

Americans were denied passport and travel documents to let them flee. They were later captured
by the Japanese and held in notorious camps under appalling conditions.

Marcia Fee Achenbach, one of those captured, was four when her camp was liberated by US
soldiers in 1944. She discovered the papers while doing research in the National Archive. Among
the evidence uncovered was a telegram that Francis Sayre, the high commissioner of the



Philippines, had sent to the US state department urging an evacuation plan. The state
department’s confidential reply read: "Visualise the remaining of Americans generally in the
Philippines in an emergency, and plan accordingly.”

Other evidence includes a letter from one of the commissioner’s secretaries indicating that
officials were not to issue passports. The secretary states that she wrote more than 5,000 letters
rejecting passport applications during the build up to Japan’s attack on Pearl Harbor.*

De-classified documents show that the Pentagon had prior knowledge of the
attack on Pearl Harbor, indeed, that they provoked and instigated the
“unprovoked” attack and did nothing to stop it.

A July 22 1941 report by Admiral Richmond Turner read,

It is generally believed that shutting off the American supply of petroleum will lead promptly to the
invasion of Netherland East Indies... it seems certain that she (Japan) would also include military
action in the Philippine islands which would immediately involve us in a Pacific war.’

Also, a Top Secret Army Board report of October 1944 clearly states that in the
period leading up to Pearl Harbor, the US military received information regarding
the intentions of the Japanese to declare war, including specific details of when
the attack on Pearl Harbor would occur,

In this period numerous pieces of information came to our State, War and Navy Departments in
all of their top ranks indicating precisely the intentions of the Japanese including the probable
exact hour and date of the attack.’

On November 24th, 1941, Admiral Isoroku Yamamoto sent a radio message to
Admiral Chuichi Nagumo, Commander of the Pacific Striking Fleet, which read,

The task force, keeping its movement strictly secret and maintaining close guard against
submarines and aircraft, shall advance into Hawaiian waters, and upon the very opening of
hostili7ties shall attack the main force of the United States fleet in Hawaii and deal it a mortal
blow.

This message was intercepted in Hawaii at a radio intercept station known as
"Station H" overlooking Kaneohe Bay on windward Oahu. The information was
passed on to Lieutenant Commander George Pease of the Office of Naval
Intelligence on December 4 1941, three days before the attack. Now that the
venue and immediacy of the attack were known, President Roosevelt ordered the
older ships in the harbor to be lined up in tight rows and the aircraft to be
arranged nose tip to nose tip. The newer ships and aircraft were removed from

4 ‘US prisoners claim Roosevelt left them in Philippines deliberately’ — David Cox — The Scotsman — July 30 2002 -
http://news.scotsman.com/international.cfm?id=820792002
> ‘The Possible Effects of an Embargo’ - The Director of the War Plans Division of the Navy Department (Turner) to the
Chief of Naval Operations (Stark) - July 19 1941 — available at
http://www.propagandamatrix.com/admiral_turners_report.html

‘Top Secret Report of Army Pearl Harbor Board’ — Memo To The Secretary of War — October 20 1944 — available at
http://www.propagandamatrix.com/army board report.html

‘The Bones of Station H’ - http://www.whatreallyhappened.com/SH.html




the scene.

Further evidence to debunk the fallacy that the attack was a surprise emerged in
late August of 2002 when a 78ft two man Japanese midget submarine was found
a few miles from Pearl Harbor. Researchers concluded that the vessel was sunk
by the destroyer USS Ward just hours before the aerial bombardment by the
Japanese.?

[INSERT FIG 2.3] [CAPTION: The Japanese submarine found at a depth of 1200 feet proves the
Pearl Harbor attack was known about and provoked by the U.S. Navy.]

Why weren’t navy personnel warned that an attack was imminent unless the
devastation and death that occurred on that day was needed as a pretext for
America to enter world war two?

Operation Northwoods — Lies, Provocation and the Masterminding of Terror

It has been officially revealed via declassified government documents that the US
military and government has covertly planned to perpetrate acts of terror upon
innocent civilians in order to justify an engagement in conflict that would have, at
the time, benefited the government’s wider geopolitical agenda. In 1962 at the
height of the Cold War, The Joint Chiefs of Staff, under the chairmanship of
General Lyman L. Lemnitzer, drew up plans to create and launch a war on Cuba
based solely on a fabric of lies. These lies revolved around the murder of
hundreds of Americans. According to ABC News,

In the early 1960s, America's top military leaders reportedly drafted plans to kill innocent people
and commit acts of terrorism in U.S. cities to create public support for a war against Cuba.’

Long hidden documents, uncovered in 2001 by former ABC News investigative
reporter James Bamford, code-named OPERATION NORTHWOODS, put a
haunting perspective behind the events of September 11. The Joint Chiefs of
Staff (JCS) documents propose launching a secret and violent war of terrorism
against their own country in order to condition the people of the USA into
supporting an intended war against Cuba. These sickening plans called for
innocent American civilians to be shot, for Cuban refugees to be blown up, for
violent and continued acts of terrorism to be perpetrated in major American cities,
for innocents to be framed for bombings, and for planes to be hijacked. This
would then be blamed on Fidel Castro and Cuba, thus inciting hatred for him and
Communism, and instigating the public backing that the JCS needed as an

8 ‘US 'fired first shot' at Pearl Harbor’ — Rupert Cornwell — London Independent — August 30 2002 -
http://news.independent.co.uk/world/americas/story.jsp?story=328705

‘Friendly Fire’ — David Ruppe — ABC News — May 1 2001 -
http://abcnews.go.com/sections/us/DailyNews/jointchiefs 010501.html




excuse to launch the pre-planned war.

[INSERT FIG 2.4] [CAPTION: ABC News reports on Operation Northwoods.]

The first instance of deception on the part of the JCS was to the new president,
John F. Kennedy, telling him that America should press ahead with an invasion
of Cuba that would trigger an internal uprising against Fidel Castro, thus ensuring
his speedy downfall. This was a total lie. The CIA itself had reports that stated
that the majority of the Cuban public looked upon Castro as a hero after he had
ousted the excessive and repressive regime of Batista two years previously.
Those people were unaware of the future horrors Castro had planned for them
but the point is that any uprising against Castro was very unlikely at this time.
Indeed, Lemnitzer himself knew this to be the case and would later refer to the
CIA Bay Of Pigs operation that followed as ‘The Cuban debacle’. Nevertheless,
at the time Lemnitzer and the JCS submitted a positive recommendation for the
operation, possibly knowing that the CIA led invasion would fail and that he could
then push for a more active involvement in Cuba and around the world, for
himself, the Pentagon and the JCS.

After the inevitably bungled Bay of Pigs operation, responsibility for dealing with
Cuba was shifted from the CIA to the Pentagon, where the project would be
known as OPERATION MONGOOSE. Under the guise of Lemnitzer and Air-
Force One star General Edward G. Lansdale, the Pentagon saw its opportunity
to further remove itself from civilian authority, particularly that of JFK who was
seen by many generals as a ‘no win chief’ who did not understand military
judgments. Military officials craved for the good old days of jurisdiction under the
military mind of president Eisenhower, and many government elites were also
this way inclined.

By February 1962 it was clear that an uprising in Cuba was highly unlikely. In
addition, it was generally accepted that Castro had no desire to attack America or
anything belonging to America. Lansdale had also been told to drop all anti-
Castro efforts by Robert Kennedy, and the JCS saw their opportunities slipping
away. There was only one option left for Lemnitzer and Lansdale, and that was
NORTHWOODS.

The strategy of NORTHWOODS was outlined,

US military intervention will result from a period of heightened US-Cuban tensions which place
the United States in the position of suffering justifiable grievances. World opinion, and the United
Nations forum should be favorably affected by developing the international image of the Cuban
government as rash and irresoponsible, and as an alarming and unpredictable threat to the peace
of the Western Hemisphere."

19 justification for US Military Intervention in Cuba’ — Joint Chiefs of Staff Memorandum for the Secretary of Defense —
March 13 1962 — p5 — available at http://www.propagandamatrix.com/northwoods.pdf




It is clear that Lemnitzer and the JCS had gone over the edge. They admitted
that the operation would mean a surge in both Cuban and American casualties,
but that they intended to go ahead with it anyway. The Northwoods document
goes into extensive detail about the proposed actions that the operation would
involve,

(1) Start rumors (many). Use clandestine radio.

(2) Land friendly Cubans in uniform “over the fence” to stage attack on US base.
(3) Capture Cuban (friendly) saboteurs inside the base.

(4) Start riots near the base main gate (friendly Cubans)

(5) Blow up ammunition inside the base; start fires.

(6) Burn aircraft on air base (sabotage)

(7) Lob mortar shells from outside of base into base. Some damage to installations.
(8) Capture assault teams approaching from the sea or vicinity of Guantanamo City.
(9) Capture militia group which storms the base

(10) Sabotage ship in harbor; large fires - - naphthalene

(11) Sink ship near harbor entrance. Conduct funerals for mock victims.™

The later sections of the report begin to outline the plots of terror that the U.S.
Government would covertly instigate upon innocent people. The first suggestion
was to re-create an incident of 1898 when a mysterious explosion aboard the
battleship Maine in Havana Harbor killed 266 US soldiers and sparked the
Spanish-American war. The horrific explosion influenced more than a million
volunteers for duty and is now widely considered to have been an act of treason
where the U.S. attacked itself to create an enemy and a pretext. The Northwoods
document continues,

A Remember the Maine incident could be arranged in several forms:

a. We could blow up a ship in Guantanamo Bay and blame Cuba.

b. We could blow up a drone (unmanned vessel) anywhere in the Cuban waters...The presence
of Cuban planes or ships merely investigating the intent of the vessel could be fairly compelling
evidence that the ship was taken under attack...Casualty lists in the newspapers would cause a
helpful wave of national indignation...We could develop a communist Cuban terror campaign in
the Miami areas, in other Florida cities and even in Washington...the terror campaign could be
pointed at Cuban refugees seeking haven in the United States. We could sink a boat load of
Cubans enroute to Florida (real or simulated). We could foster attempts on lives of Cuban
refugees in the United States..."

The JCS then go on to discuss how they could actually shoot down a mock
chartered civil aircraft and blame Cuba,

Hijacking attempts against civil air and surface craft should appear to continue as harassing
measures condoned by the government of Cuba...It is possible to create an incident which will
demonstrate convincingly that a Cuban aircraft has attacked and shot down a chartered civil air
liner enroute from the US to Jamaica, Guatemala, Venezuela or Panama. The destination would
be chosen only to cause the flight plan route to cross Cuba. The passengers could be a group of
college students off on a holiday, or any group of persons with a common interest to support

™ 1pid p10-11
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chartering a non-scheduled flight...*

The plan was to replace said aircraft with an identical drone, flown by remote
control, and land the original plane at an air force base where passengers,
boarded under prepared aliases, would be evacuated. The drone would then fly
the route and when over Cuba, emit a distress signal before being destroyed by
radio signal.

A further plan concerning a plane involved a USAF craft appearing to be shot
down by Cuban MIGs in an ‘unprovoked attack’ over international waters. The
pilot would broadcast that he was under attack and then cease all transmission.
He would then fly back to a base where the plane would be given a new tail
number and the pilot would resume his real identity. Then a US submarine would
disperse some destroyed plane parts in the water. Thus the result is a missing
plane, pilot and wreckage in international waters after reports of an attack by MIG
aircraft.

| would emphasize that before these documents became well known,
government officials denied their very existence, even though they had been
unclassified and released by the National Security Archive. Anyone with Internet
access can read them and yet Robert S. McNamara, Kennedy's defense
secretary states,

"I never heard of it. | can't believe the chiefs were talking about or engaged in what | would call
CIA-type operations.”™*

As a caveat, if Northwoods had the hallmark of the CIA then what has that
particular agency carried out that we are not aware of?

Operation Northwoods reminds us, as if it were needed, that governments owe
no allegiance to the people that elect them. The cry that ‘they’d never do that’
can be dismissed with hard evidence — government documents. The Joint Chiefs
would have carried out the plan if Kennedy hadn’t blocked it. This outright
rejection was one of the reasons behind Kennedy’s assassination little over a
year later.

The Gulf of Tonkin — Organized Deception

The Vietham War killed one million Vietnamese and 58,000 Americans. It was
launched after two incidents in August 1964, the first of which was provoked and
the second never happened. With careful avoidance of the facts, then president
Lyndon Baines Johnson was able to ram through the Gulf of Tonkin resolution,
denouncing those who raised suspicious voices as anti-American, and receiving
a validation for war. Section two of the resolution stated,

13 |bid p13
14 ‘New book on NSA sheds light on secrets’ — Scott Shane and Tom Bowman — Baltimore Sun — April 24 2001 -
http://www.baltimoresun.com/bal-te.md.nsa24apr24.story




The United States regards as vital to its national interest and to world peace the maintenance of
international peace and security in southeast Asia. Consonant with the Constitution of the United
States and the Charter of the United Nations and in accordance with its obligations under the
Southeast Asia Collective Defense Treaty, the United States is, therefore, prepared, as the
President determines, to take all necessary steps, including the use of armed force, to assist any
member or protocol state of the Southeast Asia Collective Treaty requesting assistance in
defense of its freedom.*

On August 2, North Vietnamese forces in Russian-made Swatow gunboats had
attacked the USS Maddox, a destroyer conducting ‘reconnaissance’ in the Gulf of
Tonkin. The ship was actually attacked because it was part of a joint CIA-South
Vietnamese covert intelligence operation called ‘Operation Plan 34A;

The CIA-South Vietnamese covert force conducted airborne, maritime and overland agent-
insertion operations. South Viethamese covert operatives were to gather intelligence, recruit
support, establish bases of resistance and carry out psychological operations behind enemy
lines. The maritime operation began as an infiltration operation. But beginning in June 1962, with
the loss of the vessel Nautelas Il and four commandos, it evolved into hit-and-run attacks against
North Vietnamese shore and island installations by South Viethamese and foreign mercenary
crews on high-speed patrol boats. *°

Far from being an ‘unprovoked attack’ as President Lyndon Johnson had stated,
the attack was an expected retaliation as a result of aggressive CIA-South
Vietnamese maneuvers. Johnson himself acknowledged Operation Plan 34A in
recently released White House tape recordings,

"There have been some covert operations in that (Tonkin Gulf) area that we have been carrying
on - blowing up some bridges and things of that kind, roads and so forth. So | imagine (the North
Vietnamese) wanted to put a stop to it." *’

The second incident occurred two days later on August 4. The USS Maddox and
the USS C. Turner Joy reported a second attack, this one occurring within 17
hours of 34-Alpha raids on North Vietnamese facilities at Cap Vinh Son and Cua
Ron. Earlier that day the National Security Agency had warned that an attack on
the Maddox appeared imminent. The early reports stated that four unidentified
vessels had approached the Maddox at high speed and launched 20 torpedo
missiles. The U.S. responded by firing 249 5-inch shells, 123 3-inch shells and
four or five depth charges.

Around two hours later, Adm. U.S. Grant "Oley" Sharp, commander of the U.S.
Navy's Pacific Fleet, informed Air Force Lt. Gen. David Burchinal of the Joint
Chiefs of Staff, “many of the reported contacts and torpedoes fired appear
doubtful,” and blamed the erroneous reports on “overeager sonar men” and

15 Gulf of Tonkin Resolution - Public Law 88-408; 78 Stat. 384 — August 7 1964 -
http://www.uiowa.edu/~c030162/Common/Handouts/War/Tonkin.htm

16 ‘New Light on Gulf of Tonkin’ - Captain Ronnie E. Ford, U.S. Army — July 28 1997 —
http://www.hartford-hwp.com/archives/54/106.html

T ‘Tonkin incident might not have occurred’ — Bob Richter — San Antonio Express News — August 3 2002 -
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“freak weather effects on radar.” James Stockdale, a navy aviator, squadron
commander and future vice-presidential candidate was scrambled to survey and
protect the US vessels as the ‘attack’ unfolded. In his 1984 book he stated,

"l had the best seat in the house to watch that event, and our destroyers were just shooting at
phantom targets - there were no PT boats there. There was nothing but black water and
American firepower.” *®

In 1965, Lyndon Johnson stated, “For all | know, our Navy was shooting at
whales out there."*? If this was all the President knew, and numerous intelligence
cables throughout the day indicated that no attack had taken place, why on the
evening of August 4 did he declare,

“The initial attack on the destroyer Maddox, on August 2, was repeated today by a number of
hostile vessels attacking two U.S. destroyers with torpedoes. The destroyers and supporting
aircraft acted at once on the orders | gave after the initial act of aggression. We believe at least
two of the attacking boats were sunk. There were no U.S. losses.” 0

There were no U.S. losses because no U.S. ships were under attack. The whole
incident was staged. Some argue that commanders did initially believe they had
been attacked. If this is so then why, nine hours after it had been established that
no attack took place, did the President sound the war cry to millions of American
people? The plan to launch a war on a fabric of lies had clearly been in place for
many weeks or months. This was the reward after the Gulf of Tonkin resolution
passed almost unanimously just days after the ‘attacks’. Another manufactured
crisis set the scene for the slaughter of millions of unwitting troops on both sides
of the subsequent conflict.

The history of tyranny is the history of ruthless individuals and ruling elites, who
launch wars against both countries and populations by creating acceptable
justification. This excuse is only made possible because those seemingly ‘under
attack’ have in fact attacked themselves and identified a useful scapegoat. It is
important to understand that while the real story behind these events was
confined to being regarded as rumor at the time in some instances, subsequent
historical record and government documents confirm all of the details.

Be it fortunate or unfortunate, we will not have to wait 40 years to discover that
our own governments were perpetrating terror against us today, the evidence is
in front of us right now.
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Chapter 3

British Intelligence: Her Majesty’s Terrorist Network
Shaylergate

MI5, Military Intelligence 5, looks for spies and subversives within the UK. MI6,
Military Intelligence 6, operates under Foreign Office control and is involved in
spying on ‘enemies’ of the British state abroad.

David Shayler worked for MI5 for over six years before quitting in 1997. Amongst
other departments he primarily worked for G branch, the international terrorism
desk. Shayler headed the agency’s Libyan section for around two years. During
this period he developed a good working relationship with his opposite number in
MI6. In 1995 Shayler gained access to secret MI6 documents concerning a plot
to assassinate Colonel Mu'ammar Gaddafi, the Libyan Head of State.

[INSERT FIG 3.1] [CAPTION: Former MI5 agent David Shayler pictured here with his girlfriend,
Annie Machon. Shayler was arrested for revealing British intelligence links to international
terrorist organizations.]

Mu'ammar Gaddafi was born in the desert near Sirte in 1942. He overthrew the
Libyan monarchy in 1969 and launched a cultural revolution to remove traces of
imported ideology. He has supported a broad range of militant groups including
the IRA and the Palestine Liberation Organization. Alleged Libyan involvement in
attacks in Europe in 1986 led to US military strikes against Tripoli. For several
decades Gaddafi tried to portray himself as leader of the Arab world, and has
now taken up the mission of uniting Africa.

A document released on the Internet by Shayler confirms MI6 had foreknowledge
of the Gadaffi assassination plot. Shayler insists he has further information to
prove MI6 paid a Libyan member of the Al-Qaeda terrorist network at least
£100,000 ($156,000) to lead a 20 man team in carrying out the operation. This
agent was code named TUNWORTH, his MI6 handler was code named PT16. In
a press release Shayler stated,

We need a statement from the Prime Minister and the Foreign Secretary clarifying the facts of this
matter. In particular, we need to know how around £100,000 of taxpayers' money was used to
fund the sort of Islamic Extremists who have connections to Osama Bin Laden's Al Qaeda
network. Did ministers give MI6 permission for this? By the time MI6 paid the group in late 1995
or early 1996, US investigators had already established that Bin Laden was implicated in the
1993 attack on the World Trade Center. Given the timing and the close connections between
Libyan and Egyptian Islamic Extremists, it may even have been used to fund the murder of British
citizens in Luxor, Egypt in 1996."

! Press release by David Shayler — November 11 2001 — available at http://cryptome.org/shayler-gaddafi.htm




The assassination attempt was carried out in early 1996 but failed with tragic
consequences. ‘TUNWORTH’ was to place a bomb under Gaddafi's convoy.
However, he foolishly placed the bomb under the wrong car, killing six innocent
bystanders.

Despite former British Foreign Secretary Robin Cook describing the allegation as
‘fantasy,” a 2001 Metropolitan Police investigation sought no charges against
David Shayler for perjury or wasting police time, confirming that his detailed
sworn statement was honest, reliable and true.

How can it be that the foreign intelligence agency of the British government was
colluding with Al-Qaeda terrorists who had already been charged with the 1993
World Trade Center bombing? Several of these individuals are still at large,
appearing on the FBI's most wanted terrorists list.

The 1994 bombing of the Israeli Embassy was one of the worst terrorist
bombings London has seen. A 50-pound (22 kg) car bomb injured 13 and almost
destroyed the embassy. Later that night a second bomb injured six people at the
London offices of Britain's main Jewish charities and pro-Israel institutions.

A previously unknown group, the Palestinian Resistance Jaffa Group, claimed
credit for the attacks. Two Palestinians were later convicted for the attacks. The
presiding judge said it was only "providence" that more people were not seriously
injured or killed.

Shayler alleges that the British intelligence service MI5 was warned in advance
of the bombing, yet it took no action, failing even to tip off the police or the Israeli
government.

The warning, a written report from a highly trusted source, was sent for
assessment to a desk officer in MI5's international terrorism section. After she
failed to act on the report, it was later found buried in the filing cupboard of
another officer, leading to speculation of a bungled cover up. Neither officer was
disciplined and MI5 management failed to institute procedures to prevent the
recurrence of such an incident.

Shayler would have obviously been in a position to learn of the cover up. He also
worked at G branch, the international terrorism desk.

Responding to the revelations, Israel's ambassador to Britain Moshe Raviv said,

"This story is completely new to me. The Embassy had passed on to the Foreign Office general
warnings based on information from Jerusalem. These warnings had been sent to a number of
our embassies and as a consequence we had asked the Foreign Office to step up security and
vigilance at the Embassy in London. If this information is correct, it is amazing that greater efforts



were not made to prevent the attacks."

Shayler also made the allegation that MI5 had prior knowledge of numerous IRA
bombings in London, most notably the 1993 Bishopsgate bombing, in which an
IRA truck bomb devastated the Bishopsgate area of London's financial district,
killing one and injuring 44.

Shayler’s July 2000 Punch Magazine article entitled ‘MI5 could have stopped the
bomb going off’ detailed how MI5, the police anti-terrorist branch and GCHQ - the
government's electronic eavesdropping center, had tracked the bombers for six
months before the operation and were fully aware of the specifics of the plot
before it was carried out.

Punch was fined £5,000 for contempt of court but the charge was later reversed
on appeal. However, the back issue containing the article cannot be sold in
Britain. | personally ordered a copy but ended up with a refund after being told
that particular issue was unavailable. The article in full is available on the
Internet.’

As | will later document, the Bishopsgate case is just one example of MI5’s link to
Irish Republican terrorism.

The Gag

Shayler’s revelations were first published in a series of reports for the Mail on
Sunday in August 1997. From this point onwards, all articles by or about David
Shayler had to be passed through a special branch of the Ministry of Defence,
whereupon the attorney general, Lord Williams, scanned them for any details that
would breach the 1989 Official Secrets Act. The publishers were then told
whether or not they were allowed to print the report. The British government had
appointed itself as state censor. Their argument that publishing Shayler’s
information would breach national security can be debunked by the very fact that
their own intelligence agencies are a threat to national security by way of their
treasonous behavior.

Following the Mail on Sunday expose, Shayler fled to France in an attempt to
avoid arrest. The British government were so desperate to extradite him, Shayler
even half joked that MI5 fixed the 1998 Coca Cola Cup soccer tournament in
England so that Shayler’s team, Middlesborough, would reach the final, tempting
him to return to attend the game. Shayler resisted the urge but was subsequently
arrested by the French authorities.

Shayler was released from prison in November of 1998 and from that point on
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fought a war of brinkmanship with Tony Blair's government, threatening to
release more damaging information while they tried to either lure him back to the
country or have the French extradite him. This exchange continued up until
Shayler’s return to the UK when his trial for violating the Official Secrets Act
commenced in October 2002.

On Monday October 7th 2002, numerous articles appeared in British newspapers
specifying how top Labour cabinet members were intimidating the judge of the
Shayler case, Justice Alan Moses. MP’s such as Foreign Secretary Jack Straw
and Home Secretary David Blunkett were trying to force Moses to accept Public
Interest Immunity Certificates that would make part of the case, i.e. the £100,000
bin Laden transfer, secret. Upon mention of this material, media and public would
have to leave the courtroom.

By the evening of October 7th, the British newspaper reports had either been
removed from their respective web sites or completely amended. The original
London Guardian report that was later erased stated,

Ministers have demanded that part of the trial of David Shayler, the former MI5 officer, which
starts at the Old Bailey today, be held in secret in what lawyers say is an unprecedented attempt
to influence the course of criminal proceedings. The home secretary, David Blunkett, and the
foreign secretary, Jack Straw, have signed public interest immunity certificates - a device
designed to gag a court - insisting that the media and the public leave if activities of the security
and intelligence agencies are raised by the defence

Government officials and lawyers persuaded the two cabinet ministers to sign the Pl certificates
after they learned that Mr Shayler intended to defend himself at the trial. They appear to be
worried that he will make further allegations about MI5 and MI6 knowledge of a plot to
assassinate the Libyan leader, Muammar Gadafy, in 1996. A book, Forbidden Truth, published
this summer claims that British intelligence was in contact with "Osama bin Laden's main allies"
who were opposed to Colonel Gadafy.”

By the late evening of October 7th, the London Evening Standard and the
Scotsman had also removed their original reports concerning the trial. The
London Evening Standard were forced to censor the following,

Shayler will be defending himself during the trial. He is expected to claim that British secret
service agents paid up to £100,000 to al Qaeda terrorists for an assassination attempt on Libyan
leader Colonel Gadaffy in 1996. He is seeking permission to plead a defence of "necessity" - that
he acted for the greater good by revealing wrongdoing by the security service.®

Whereas the Scotsman, before completely changing the nature of the article,
stated,

The renegade agent, who faces six years imprisonment for breaching the Official Secrets Act
after making a number of sensational revelations about MI5 to a national newspaper in 1997, will
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represent himself for part of the landmark case. The trial will centre around a number of
allegations made by Shayler about MI5 holding files on prominent politicians, including former
cabinet minister Peter Mandelson and Jack Straw, the Foreign Secretary. He also claimed the
secregservices ignored warnings that might have prevented bombings in the London in 1993 and
1994,

It became apparent that a D-Notice had been issued to gag the story. A D-Notice
is a mandate emanating from an office of the Ministry of Defence called the
Defence Advisory Committee, effectively silencing any media report that is
considered harmful to national security implications. Luckily, | had already saved
and printed these deleted stories, which enabled me to use them as a basis for
an article | would subsequently write for my web site, entitled ‘ShaylerGate.’

After | advised my readers to mass E mail the British media, asking them why
they had deleted these stories, the London Guardian was forced to print a small
blurb in its October 8 edition which read,

An Old Bailey court yesterday heard legal arguments relating to the trial of David Shayler, the
former MI5 officer charged with breaking the Official Secrets Act. The judge ruled that they cannot
be reported.’

So in effect, using the analogy of Russian dolls, the British government had
gagged the gag. They had ensured parts of the Shayler trial remain secret and at
the same time, prevented the mainstream British press from reporting on the very
debate of whether that was in the public interest. An Australian newspaper later
confirmed this,

The British media have been gagged from reporting sensational courtroom evidence of former
MI5 spy David Shayler, including his alleged proof that the British secret service paid $270,000
for al Qaeda terrorists to assassinate Libyan leader Muammar Gaddafi in 1996. In its efforts to
contain Mr Shayler's allegations to the privacy of the court, the government has even stopped the
media from reporting its successful attempt to win a gag order.

The British media widely reported on Monday that lawyers acting for Mr Shayler had accused the
government of trying to "intimidate" Justice Moses. But on Tuesday the newspapers - many of
which had mounted their own legal case against the application of the certificates - reported
simply that the court had heard legal arguments relating to Mr Shayler's trial. "The judge ruled
that they (the legal arguments) cannot be reported,” The Guardian reported.

Although Mr Shayler's jury trial is expected to begin next week in the Old Bailey, any evidence
relating to sensitive security or intelligence matters will be kept private. After the judge's ruling on
Monday, several articles detailing Mr Shayler's anticipated evidence - and the government's
efforts to keep it secret - were withdrawn from newspaper websites across the country.8

Note that according to The Age, the Al-Qaeda payoff was even greater, standing
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at £170,000.
Why bury the story?

It is common knowledge amongst journalists that MI5 has a very close
relationship with London’s Fleet Street hacks. The Security Service has at least
two agents working in every major newspaper office. MI5 frequently issue their
officers with false National Union Of Journalist cards denoting them as reporters,
standard cover for clandestine stage management of the media.

The argument that the story was gagged because it contravened the Official
Secrets Act and was a threat to national security does not hold sway. Recall, this
was the same Labour government that before it came to power argued vigorously
to amend the Official Secrets Act to protect whistleblowers.

The story was gagged because at that time its implications would severely
undermine both the validity of the war on terrorism and the rhetoric behind the
impending invasion of Irag.

Jack Straw, the British Foreign Secretary who issued one of the PIl gag
certificates, was involved in soliciting illegal weapons transfers to numerous
countries, deals that directly contravene international protocol. As | document
elsewhere in this book, Britain has been caught shipping arms to India, Pakistan,
Israel and Iran — directly fomenting instability in those regions.

In addition, Shayler insists he has more revelations concerning the British tool
company Matrix Churchill and the arms to Iraq scandal, which originally broke
under the former Tory government. Again, this is covered in detail elsewhere in
this book.

| have no doubt, and the man himself has publicly stated so, that Shayler has
even more damaging information concerning British intelligence collusion with
the very organizations we are told are our supposed enemies. A £100,000+ Al-
Qaeda payoff, after they had bombed the World Trade Center in 1993, may only
be scratching the surface.

The paranoid and authoritarian reaction of the British government in censoring
both the Gadaffi plot and David Shayler’s trial begs the question - what else do
they have to hide?

Protecting bin Laden’s Lieutenants

In September of 2002, one year after the attacks on New York and Washington,
French intelligence officials angrily accused MI5 of failing to cooperate in stifling
Islamic terrorist groups. The level of assistance received from British intelligence
was described as being “worse than before” September 11th.



The French specifically referred to the case of Abu Qatada, a 43-year-old militant
Muslim cleric born in Jordan. Qatada is described by many as the leader and
mastermind of Al-Qaeda’'s European network. Videos of Mr Qatada's speeches
were found in the Hamburg flat of Mohamed Atta, who is believed to have been
the leader of the September 11 hijackers.® Qatada has links with terror suspects
in Germany, France, Italy, Belgium, Britain and Spain. Baltasar Garzon, a
Spanish National High Court judge charged with leading Spain's Al-Qaeda
crackdown, named Qatada as the "spiritual head of the mujahideen in Britain.”*°
In 1993 Qatada was sentenced to life imprisonment, in his absence, by a court in
Jordan for his involvement in a terrorist bombing campaign. He escaped jail by
fleeing to West London and bought a house in Acton. Claiming political refugee
status, he avoided extradition.

After September 11th, Qatada was identified as a ‘specially designated global
terrorist’ by a US executive order.** He was also categorized by the British
Treasury as ‘believed to have committed, or pose, a significant risk of committing
or providing material support for acts of terrorism.™*? Qatada disappeared from his
London home in December 2001, just before the implementation of new anti-
terrorism legislation would have finally paved the way for him to be deported.

In the summer of 2002 a sensational Time Magazine report revealed where
exactly Qatada had gone,

Senior European intelligence officials tell TIME that Abu Qatada is tucked away in a safe house in
the north of England, where he and his family are being lodged, fed and clothed by British
intelligence services. "The deal is that Abu Qatada is deprived of contact with extremists in
London and Europe but can't be arrested or expelled because no one officially knows where he
is," says the source, whose claims were corroborated by French authorities. "The British win
because the last thing they want is a hot potato they can't extradite for fear of al-Qaeda reprisals
but whose presence contradicts London's support of the war on terror.™

Despite official denial French anti-terrorist officers stated on the record that they
were certain MI5 were protecting Qatada, and in addition believed they had
actually colluded in his disappearance. A senior French intelligence agent stated,
“British intelligence is saying they have no idea where he is but we know where
he is and, if we know, I'm quite sure they do."**
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[INSERT FIG 3.2] [CAPTION: Abu Qatada — the Al-Qaeda leader given protection by MI5.]

Why on earth were MI5 protecting Osama bin Laden’s European ambassador
while at the same time claiming ignorance of his whereabouts? If they wanted to
interrogate him in secret then why did they wait three months after 9/11 before
coming into contact with him? The leaders of the ‘war on terrorism’ seem to treat
high-level Al-Qaeda members with reverence, even recruiting them as agents.

Why wasn’t Qatada sent to be held in U.S. military custody at Guantanamo Bay?
He is a known Al-Qaeda terrorist, expresses support to Osama bin Laden’s
ideals and is named, in British government documents, as highly likely to be
involved in future acts of terrorism.

Qatada wasn'’t transferred to Guantanamo because he actually was a terrorist,
unlike the other ‘residents’ of the naval brig. A Guantanamo official, quoted in the
Los Angeles Times, stated, “some of these guys literally don’t know the world is
round.”™ The same report detailed how U.S. authorities had yet to identify any
senior Al Qaeda leaders among the nearly 600 terror suspects from 43 countries
being held at Guantanamo Bay. The torture camp consisted of nothing more than
a group of goat herders that had been given a gun and thrown onto the front line
by the Taliban.

As the Qatada case highlights, the real Al-Qaeda and Taliban leadership were
whisked away to safety by orders of U.S. and British intelligence. This contradicts
the entire scope of the ‘war on terrorism’ and leads us to question who precisely
is giving comfort to terrorists — rogue states or our own governments?

The Real IRA: MI5

For more than 30 years, Catholics and Protestants have fought bitterly over
whether Northern Ireland should belong to Ireland or to Britain. The conflict has
left 3,600 people dead on both sides and more than 30,000 injured. There was
hope in 1998, when the landmark Good Friday peace agreement was reached.
The agreement created a government in which both Protestant and Catholic
representatives could share power in Northern Ireland. But tensions continued to
grow between Catholics and Protestants, especially after the IRA refused to
destroy or surrender its weapons.

The Real IRA is a hard line group of between 70 and 170 members dedicated to
an armed campaign aimed at driving the British out of Ireland. Its members see
themselves as Irish republican purists, accusing the Provisional IRA of selling
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short republican ideals.

Since its founding in 1997, the Real IRA has been fully infiltrated by British
intelligence - MI5. The first double agent to infiltrate the Real IRA on behalf of the
British government was David Gary Rupert, an elusive loner born in Madrid, New
York State. Rupert first surfaced at an Irish Freedom Committee meeting in
Chicago in 1997. Eye Spy Magazine reported,

He was a well-known figure at meetings and became the talk of the IFC. Many believed he had
contacts that wended their way to the very top of organisations like Sinn Fein and the IRA.

MI5 had successfully tracked US fund-raising efforts to certain US citizens and groups through
bank accounts. But they needed more information. Together with the FBI and Irish security police,
they spoke to Mr Rupert who agreed to work for them as a double agent. It was a major coup.

Throughout the last four years he has supplied intelligence on fundraising, bank accounts, and
recruiting campaigns. He "networked" between various rival factions and was so trusted he
eventually befriended members of the Real IRA and several political organisations, such as the
32 County Sovereignty Committee. Similarly, he was befriended by Martin Galvin, a New York
lawyer and the head of Noraid, the American fundraising arm of the Provisional IRA. Rupert was
given codes and access to various associated groups and learned of leading personnel on both
sides of the Atlantic. As Rupert forwarded donations to Ireland and elsewhere, MI5, the FBI and
the Garda were carefully following the transactions, collecting details of every bank account the
money was channelled through. In 1999 Rupert met with Michael McKevitt, who MI5 believe is
the head of the Real IRA. Mr McKevitt is said to have introduced Rupert to other leading players
in the group. And, according to sources, he handed over a £10,000 donation to ‘cement relations’.
Rupert told the Garda that the organisation was planning a series of top-level meetings at a
certain location. The Irish security services planted listening devices and surveillance equipment
in the room. Much evidence was apparently acquired and then the Garda asked MI5 and the FBI
if it was time to act. The agencies mind was made up for them when Rupert said McKevitt had
allegedly asked him to participate in a terrorist act. The Garda said that if they arrested McKevitt,
Rupert would have to testify and this meant blowing his cover. MI5 knew they were about to lose
one of their most important agents, but the prize they believed was worth it. Rugert agreed to
testify for a massive sum of money and a new identity. He was also relocated.”

Twenty-nine people were killed and 200 badly injured, when a 500 Ib bomb
exploded in a busy shopping street in Omagh, Northern Ireland, on 15 August
1998. The bomb was planted by the dissident republican group, the Real IRA,
although at the time of writing only one individual, Colm Murphy, has been
formally charged. The tragedy claimed nine children as victims.

MI5, along with the Royal Ulster Constabulary, knew at least two days before the
attack not only that an attack would take place, but also the name of the bomb
maker and his car registration. If they had placed this terrorist under surveillance,
the horror of Omagh would have been prevented. British intelligence had a
reason for allowing the bombing to go forward. One of the terrorists in the
bombing team was a double agent. He was working for MI5.
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[INSERT FIG 3.3] [CAPTION: The Sunday Herald report on MI5 involvement in the 1998 Omagh
bombing should have led to arrests and reprimands but it was just calmly reported in the back of
the newspaper.]

This damning information was released by Kevin Fulton (a pseudonym), another
British double agent in the IRA. Fulton was an ex-British army soldier and one-
time member of the army's covert Force Research Unit. Fulton says he was
recruited by the secret service to inform on the activities of the IRA in the 1980s.
He claims to have been an informer up until the IRA cease-fire in 1996. Included
in a whole raft of separate allegations is Fulton’s contention that MI5 and the FBI
helped him travel to the United States and buy state of the art infra-red
equipment for the IRA so that they could trigger bombs from over a mile away."’

Fulton was also involved in the process of actually mixing explosives to make
new types of bombs. He also coordinated political assassinations and robberies
to help finance the IRA. This policy came directly from the very top; then-Prime
Minister Margaret Thatcher received a weekly briefing on Fulton’s activities.
Fulton states,

“I was told 'there'll be no medals for this, and no recognition, but this goes the whole way to the
Prime Minister. The Prime Minister knows what you are doing.”®

Fulton had to slip into the role of a terrorist to prevent his cover from being blown.
He helped plan murders and torture innocent people with the backing and
encouragement of the Prime Minister and MI5. When Fulton had outlived his
usefulness he realized that MI5 and military intelligence were fully prepared to
leave him to be killed. It was at that point that he distanced himself from both the
IRA and British intelligence and began a whistle-blowing campaign.

Fulton alleges that 48 hours before the Omagh bombing he met with a senior
member of the Real IRA in a pub in Dundalk. The man was covered in dust and
gave off a strong odor of fertilizer sediment. He had obviously been making a
bomb. The man told Fulton “there’s something big on.”

Within hours, Fulton informed his handler, telling him the name of the man and
his car registration number, along with a description of the vehicle. The sensitivity
of the information would have meant that Fulton’s RUC handler immediately pass
it on to higher authorities. Any information portending to an immediate threat to
British national security is subject to a ‘FLASH’ classification of urgency, meaning
it instantaneously receives the attention of MI5 and MI6 counter terrorism agents.
Another ex-informer, Willy Carlin, said of the Fulton allegations,
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“I would believe that the officer put it in the system, and it would have immediately been shared
by the security services, by MI5 and MI6. It would definitely been shared with the Chief
Constable, no doubt about it. And it would have been shared with the Garda [the police in the
Irish Republic]. And the question is, if it was shared, what happened? And why didn’t someone
turn up in Dundalk and watch this man for 48 hours?"*°

British intelligence sat back and did nothing as the bomb traveled from Dundalk
to Omagh in a vehicle they could easily have identified and apprehended. It has
now been confirmed by the Sunday Herald that MI5 allowed the bombing to take
place because one of its own double agents had successfully infiltrated the Real
IRA and his cover would have been blown if the bomb plot had been exposed. Of
course, this in itself is a whitewash. The agent, code named ‘Stakeknife’ had
managed to tap the upper echelons of the terrorist group and MI5 valued the
continued position of him as a key informer over and above the 29 lives that were
suddenly ended on that hot August afternoon. The Sunday Herald source stated,

“The only reason the RUC would not act on a tip-off which stated a bomb was in the offing is if a
member of the bombing team was a highly-placed agent and they needed to keep him in place. If
the operation was allowed to go ahead then the agent would be seen as a good guy by the Real
IRA; but if it failed, he could have come under suspicion of being an informer and been killed.”*

How can the MI5 and the RUC justify allowing a terrorist bombing to proceed to
simply keep an agent in place? An informant is supposed to have the rationale of
warning his superiors so that they can take action to avert such a catastrophe, as
mentioned earlier in the circumstances surrounding the infiltration of the Real IRA
by David Rupert. This wasn’t the case in Omagh. So why did the British
government authorize the bombing?

[INSERT FIG 3.4] [CAPTION: The Omagh bombing — MI5 had an agent within the actual bomb
squad carrying out the terrorist attack.]

Just weeks after the bombing, the Irish and British parliaments were recalled
early to pass anti-terrorism legislation openly described as “draconian.”®* Despite
Prime Minister Tony Blair's assertion that the Criminal Justice (Terrorism and
Conspiracy) Bill was not a ‘knee jerk reaction’ — MP’s were not even given time to
thoroughly read it. The bill was passed within 24 hours of its proposal. Former
Prime Minister John Major gleefully admitted that the new laws were a response
to “the public mood for action following the atrocity at Omagh” without
consideration of how the wider legal implications could effect that very same
emotionally manipulated public who had just been bombarded for two weeks with
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horror stories about blood soaked babies and missing limbs.??

The new legislation enabled the government to prosecute any group they defined
as an ‘active paramilitary’ as a terrorist organization and deny them the right to
legal counsel. The mandate of the bill, ‘intended to catch the Omagh bombers’
can only be considered to have been a complete failure, as to this day the
individuals responsible for the Omagh bombing are still at large.

Again we see the Hegelian dialectic at work. Create the problem (allow the
bombing to take place), apportion blame (the Real IRA), get the desired reaction
(shock, revulsion and a desire for vengeance) and then hurriedly offer the
solution (draconian police state laws) that do nothing to stop real terrorists and
only strip innocent people of fundamental human rights.

The final word on Omagh will be left to Lawrence Rush, the husband of one of
the victims,

"Tell me, are you a completely incompetent force, that in Great Britain they can pick up lone
murderers out of a population of 59m? Do you recognise that we have a population of 4m and
you cannot pick up over 100-odd people? My dear sir, this is a conspiracy. This will come out like
the Derry Thirteen (a reference to the Bloody Sunday massacre by the British army in 1972). Why
did Sinn Fein close their office the day before the bomb? Why was the army confined to
barracks? Why sir, did the RUC have only three men on the streets of Omagh and 24 men in
surrounding areas? Tell me that. This is a conspiracy by the British government and by everyone
involved in the administration. This is an example of administrative terrorism."*®

Mr. Rush’s wife died in the blast. Victims of both the bombing and the suffocating
legislation introduced shortly afterwards were the only victims of Omagh. The
perpetrators in both cases were the British government, MI5 and MI6, Her
Majesty’s terrorist network.
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Chapter 4

Chaos 101: Building Your Own Enemies
Puppet On A String: Hamas Dances To Israel’s Tune

Many people identify Zionism and the expansion of Israel as the head of the New
World Order hydra. In reality, Israel is just another tentacle of the beast. The
Globalists do not owe allegiance to any particular country, they will use any
nation or movement as muscle to ram through their agenda. In saying this, it is
no surprise to learn that the people who control Israel use the same tactics as
their peers to oppress their population beneath a choking police state.

After September 11 Israel hijacked the rhetoric of the ‘war on terrorism’ and used
it to stoke the fire of their own agenda, sanctioned within the wider context of the
overall Globalist game plan. In a January 2003 United Press International report,
it was openly stated that Israel feel completely justified in admitting that Mossad
will be carrying out political assassinations on American soil,

Israel is embarking upon a more aggressive approach to the war on terror that will include staging
targeted killings in the United States and other friendly countries, former Israeli intelligence
officials told United Press International. Israeli Prime Minister Ariel Sharon has forbidden the
practice until now, these sources said, speaking on condition of anonymity.*

Of course, it has been known for decades that Mossad conduct so-called ‘pre-
emptive’ assassinations of political enemies on foreign shores. The public
admission itself is what makes the story, not the details, which were already
largely known. When asked about this report, White House press secretary Ari
Fleischer simply dismissed the question.

Israel’'s supposed arch-enemy, the terrorist group Hamas, was founded and
funded by Israel’'s dominant Likud party and continues to be bankrolled to this
day by political bodies pushing a one world government system. This is not my
opinion and | am not breaking an exclusive story. It is a documented fact
reported on by mainstream news outlets and admitted by respected individuals
within the US and Israeli governments and intelligence agencies.

The objectives of Hamas dovetail with those of the Likud, no settlement at all
costs. Whenever the prospect of a workable peace settlement between the
Israelis and Palestinians arises, Hamas or one of their offshoots blows a bus,
restaurant or a hotel to bits. This gives Israel the justification needed to scupper
any agreement and further entrench their occupation of disputed lands. All the
outsider sees is carnage, death and a mainstream media that spins the issue so
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that these atrocities somehow represent the wishes of the Palestinian people.

The Globalists have no intention of settling the conflict and will likely use it
several years down the line to initiate a near-apocalyptic third world war that will
fully ensconce their wicked empire. The final phase is a stage-managed ‘clash of
civilizations’ between the Arab world, possibly supported by China, and the west.

According to United Press International,

Israel and Hamas may currently be locked in deadly combat, but, according to several current
and former U.S. intelligence officials, beginning in the late 1970s, Tel Aviv gave direct and indirect
financial aid to Hamas over a period of years.’

Israel wanted to radicalize the dispute by molding Hamas into a fundamentalist
militant crusade to ape the Khomeini revolution in Iran. So much so that Israel
groomed potential Hamas leaders, pressuring Israeli authorities to give them
licenses to set up food kitchens, clinics, schools, and day-care centers, to create
a governing structure alternative to Arafat's Fatah. These were known as ‘Village
Leagues’ - and provided future Hamas operatives with a political and
governmental foothold. This began in 1978 when Prime Minister Menachem
Begin, himself a former terrorist leader, approved an application from Sheik
Ahmad Yassin to license the Islamic Association, which would later produce a
military wing, Hamas, in 1987. The Israeli Likud party propped up Yassin
because they both had the same agenda, to destabilize Arafat’s Fatah.

The Village Leagues were then infiltrated by the Israeli intelligence agency Shin
Bet, which provided weapons training for the Palestinians and also created a
network of thousands of informers. This funding and support continued even after
the signing of the 1993 Oslo accords.

The deliberate insertion of a competing faction would dilute support for the
Palestinian Liberation Organization. Current Israeli Prime Minister Ariel Sharon
had a key role in the formation of this policy. After the first wave of suicide
bombings began in 1994, Israel could also discredit the PLO by linking it with
Hamas after every terrorist atrocity. The hard line Likud party could then increase
its standing amongst the Israeli people by promising a brutal crackdown on
Palestinian terrorism. Chaos and anarchy on the West Bank entails order —
Likud’s order.

[INSERT FIG 4.1] [CAPTION: Hamas — the Israeli-controlled terror wind-up toy.]

Correspondingly, the US government used the tactic of radicalizing a group or a
country when it shipped millions of Islamic fundamentalist schoolbooks to
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Afghanistan under George Bush senior.® The books encouraged violent jihad and
the overthrow of the then secular Afghan government. This conditioned a whole
generation to calmly accept the subsequent fundamentalist Taliban regime,
which was put into power in 1996 by the CIA.*

Of course, an even more plentiful supply of compliance from Israeli citizens is
harvested from manufactured terrorist threats, a tactic used to perfection by the
post-9/11 Bush and Blair governments. By managing both the Hamas leadership
and perception of the group’s deadly potential in the media, the Israeli elite could
frighten their people into living under a police state,

Sharon is conducting a vicious psychological operation inside Israel, to secure popular support for
a war by staging continuous terror scares. One Israeli businessman confirmed that almost nightly,
Israeli police enter restaurants, hotels, shops, etc., ordering patrons to evacuate due to "bomb
threats." The businessman, a former Mossad official, was told by Israeli authorities that the
scares are in almost all cases hoaxes, perpetrated to traumatize the public into accepting any
anti-Arab military actions.’

Previous to Israel’s intervention, Hamas was a relatively dormant and sidelined
minority group. According to UPI's US government source, "The thinking on the
part of some of the right-wing Israeli establishment was that Hamas and the
others, if they gained control, would refuse to have any part of the peace process
and would torpedo any agreements put in place.”® The well-respected
International Herald Tribune could only agree,

It is well-known that, in its long war against Palestinian nationalism, Israel penetrated every
faction and recruited a veritable army of Palestinian informers and collaborators.’

Secretary-General of the Palestinian Authority Tayeb Raheem went into further
details by stating that Hamas cells existed within the Israeli army and security
services, proof of which was documentation highlighting the fact that Islamic
operatives were regularly entering camps such as Dahaniya that only Israeli
collaborators were permitted to access.

The closest the world came to seeing a settlement in Israel was during the term
of Prime Minister Yitzhak Rabin. Rabin had signed the Oslo agreement with
Yasser Arafat, which was the framework for the establishment of a Palestinian
state by 1998. Rabin was by no means a soft touch to the Palestinians during his
early years in office, but by late 1995 he had reached effective accords with both
the Palestinians and Jordan, and was on the verge of repeating the trick with
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Syria. As Arab governments’ support for the initiative increased, their funding and
support of Hamas decreased.

It was at this point, on November 4 1995, that Rabin was gunned down by a ‘lone
nut assassin’ after a peace rally in Tel Aviv. His assassin, Yigal Amir was trained
by Shin Bet, the Israeli domestic intelligence service. Shin Bet had received
multiple warnings in the weeks preceding the event that an assassination attempt
would take place. Strange therefore that Rabin’s security detail, who were trained
to immediately fire upon any armed intruder, stood idly by and watched as Amir
walked within six feet of Rabin and discharged his weapon. According to the New
York Times, Rabin was able to get up and enter his nearby limousine stating, “it
hurts, but it's not so bad" before being driven to the hospital. Upon arrival,
Rabin’s chauffeur had to sprint through the hallways shouting in an attempt to get
some attention. The notion that a hospital wouldn’t have a medical team on
standby for the arrival of a seriously wounded Prime Minister is inconceivable.
These are just a few pieces of evidence out of hundreds to suggest that Rabin
was meant to die.

Rabin’s wife, Leah, directly blamed the Likud party and particularly its
bloodthirsty leader, Benjamin Netanyahu. The Rabin murder underlines the fact
that whether Hamas dupes or their own agents are utilized, the tactics and
ideology are always the same. Israel’s right-wing elite and their global puppet
masters were anxious to crumble any hope for peace, which before Rabin’s
assassination was a viable possibility.

Another reason for Rabin’s elimination was his open understanding that Hamas
was a tool of the Israeli elite, according to Yasser Arafat. In an interview with the
Italian daily Corriere della Sera, Arafat said,

"We are doing everything to stop the violence. But Hamas is a creature of Israel which at the time
of Prime Minister [Yitzhak] Shamir [the late 1980s, when Hamas arose], gave them money and
more than 700 institutions, among them schools, universities and mosques. Even [former Israeli
Prime Minister Yitzhak] Rabin ended up admitting it, when | charged him with it, in the presence
of [Egpytian President Hosni] Mubarak."®

Rabin defined Israel’s covert support of Hamas as a “fatal error” and was in the
process of putting an end to it before his assassination. He expelled 400 of its
operatives in 1992 and arrested 4,000 of them in the months before his death.
Hamas responded by taking a ‘the enemy of my enemy is my friend’ stance and
pledged allegiance to the Israeli opposition party, the Likud. Taking into
consideration the fact that such information could have been propaganda
emanating from either Arafat or Rabin, a Jerusalem Post editorial still concluded
that the Hamas-Likud partnership wasn't bellicose propaganda — they defined it
as “conventional wisdom.”®
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Israeli, American and British control of Palestinian terrorists can be put in the
context of the 2003 invasion of Iraq. Abu Nidal was accused of nearly 900
political assassinations spanning the entire globe, as member of the Palestinian
terror group Fateh Revolutionary Council. This group mysteriously escaped any
Israeli reprisal, leading many analysts to conclude that it was firmly under
Mossad control and used to discredit the PLO. In August of 2002 Nidal was
found dead in a Baghdad hotel. Experts were certain that he had committed
suicide to escape capture but the fact that he had sustained multiple gunshot
wounds heavily suggests he was killed by Iraqi operatives. According to The
Intelligence Network,

Abu Nidal was working for the Israeli intelligence agency, Mossad, for the last four years and was
plotting a coup against Iragi president Saddam Hussain at the behest of Western powers, top
diplomats said.™

Many experts contend that Israel was pulling Nidal's strings as far back as the
1960’s. Nidal was somehow able to obtain multi-entry visas and passports for
numerous countries. Mossad had to shift him around the globe on several
occasions to avoid his arrest. As the anti-war chorus grew to a crescendo in late
2002, the Americans began to formulate contingency plans that would enable
them to overthrow Hussein without the need for a full-scale invasion of Iraq. The
Iragis, who themselves utilized Nidal in the 70’s, learned of the Israeli/American
plot to use the asset Nidal and consequently had him neutralized.

After the mid-seventies, Nidal's renegade attacks on Palestinian Fatah leaders
far outweighed those against Israelis and Jews. Arafat's most trusted lieutenants
were Nidal's favorite targets, most notably PLO's former intelligence chief Abu
lyad. Apart from Arafat, all the other founding members of Fatah were killed by
Nidal in concert with Israel. Israel exploited their control of Nidal to the greatest
effect in June 1982,

Three gunmen seriously wounded then-ambassador Shlomo Argov in London, giving Menachem

Begin's government the excuse it needed to implement then-defense minister Ariel Sharon's plan
to invade Lebanon and push the PLO out of Beirut. Told it was Abu Nidal's men, not Arafat's, who
shot Argov, then-chief of staff Rafael Eitan was reported to have said, "Nidal, Shmidal, they're all

the same.""!

Nidal always acted in the countries where Palestinian support was the strongest
such as Greece, Cyprus and Sudan, and never in the occupied areas. He was in
essence a gun for hire, carrying out assassinations on behalf of Syria and Iraq
during the eighties. Israel took full advantage in that they could use Nidal to both
attack the PLO directly and commit terrorism, which Israel would then falsely link
to the PLO.
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The European Union began as a free trade agreement but is now a centralized,
un-elected, unaccountable federal power block that has subjugated the
sovereignty of its member states. The parallels between Hitler’s plan for Europe
and the developments that actually transpired under the EU are frightening. As
with all attack arms of global government, the EU’s success is dependent on
creating problems that it then ‘solves’ by increasing its own authority. The
militarization of the EU as a standing army (and one not restricted to Europe)
would be worthless and unprofitable unless there was a healthy supply of global
chaos to counteract. Therefore we should not be surprised that EU money is
being laundered to Hamas. According to the EU Observer,

The allegations have been in the air for over two years: EU money is being used by Yassir
Arafat's Palestinian Authority to fund terrorist activities. The claim by Ariel Sharon's government
at the beginning of May that it had found "damning evidence" to support this allegation brought
the polemic into the open. Concerned at the accusations, the Parliament suspended payment of
some 18.5 million euro due to the Palestinians until May 19.%?

Why Arafat would want to channel money into those groups that actually weaken
his authority is unclear. It seems more likely that Sharon is trying to distract from
his own administration’s funding of Hamas. As for the EU, this issue is very
unpopular in the European parliament. At the time of writing, a bill proposed to
investigate the matter looks set to be abandoned because the petition is 17
names short of its required total. Despite the EU’s claim that its hands are clean
and that any money that reaches the hands of terrorist groups is the
responsibility of the Palestinian Authority, they have been nothing short of
desperate to prevent a simple probe,

EU Commissioner for External Affairs Chris Patten has successfully persuaded 12 of the MEPs
that wanted to sign on to the petition to withdraw their support on the basis that he has seen no
evidence of misuse of EU money, and has accused the MEPs supporting the investigation of
"flogging a dead horse." MEP Charles Tannock says he is astonished by his fellow Conservative
Party colleague's attitude: "My campaign has incurred the wrath of Commissioner Patten, who
regards this initiative as a direct challenge to his authority and credibility. The sole purpose of this
investigation is to clear the air, and | have always maintained a balanced approach to the
Israel/Palestine question, favoring a peaceful settlement based on a two-state solution."

Commissioner Patten's response is that he needs an investigation of PA abuse of his funds "like |
need a hole in the head." Patten's unwillingness to investigate how the PA used the money it was
given by the EU seems remarkably peculiar considering that the EU Court of Auditors declined
last November to approve the EU's budget for the eighth year running, admitting it can only
guarantee that 5 percent of taxpayers' money is being spent properly.*

The question has been raised as to, if Yasser Arafat is such a loose cannon and
a danger to the Israeli/Globalist agenda, why hasn’t he been assassinated? It
seems Arafat is merely the other side of the coin. He’s a Bilderberger.
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Every year since 1954, the secretive Bilderberg Group (named after the hotel
where they first met in the Netherlands), comprising elite powerbrokers from
Europe and North America, has convened to discuss, and influence, the
changing global, political, economic and social landscape. The meeting is a
coming together of the world’s most powerful individuals and yet yearly media
coverage is non-existent. Bilderberg is arguably the highest-level known semi-
secret organization pushing a one-world order. Bilderberg has used its
considerable influence to oust political figures that cease to cooperate with the
global agenda, most notably Margaret Thatcher who was proving a thorn in the
side of European federalism until she was replaced by the Carlyle Group’s John
Major.

The Bilderberg Group also counts amongst its members one Yasser Arafat.
Arafat attended the group’s June 1999 meeting in Sintra, Portugal.

| suspect Arafat is an unwitting accomplice to the Globalists and is being
manipulated to react in ways that are harmful to his own cause, and of course
beneficial to those who seek to indefinitely enflame the Middle East.

The solution to the Israeli-Palestinian conflict is of the same brand as the solution
to all other devastating conflicts around the world. Expose the chaos mongers,
expose the global elite who manage and inflict total bedlam to further their own
agenda. They are the source of all our ills and yet a vast majority of the world
don’t even know who ‘they’ are or what their agenda is. If we are to ensure that
future generations of Israelis and Palestinians are not to live in abject day-to-day
terror, we must point out who benefits from keeping Israel in permanent turmoil.

Middle Eastern Chessboard: Arming Iraq

Irag is now an occupied country and the significance of the war will be discussed
in a later chapter. The purpose of this segment is to ascertain how Iraq acquired
its arsenal of weapons that eventually led to it being declared as a ‘rogue state’.
Again, | stress that some of these subjects have been exhaustively documented
elsewhere numerous times. The scope here is to provide a thumbnail sketch that
includes the latest up to date information.

It is necessary to understand why the Globalists arm rogue nations only to
overthrow them ten or fifteen years later. Obviously it makes significant amounts
of money for giant defense contractors, which often have tentacles into
government itself, like the Carlyle Group. Any such rogue state will not be
provided with the latest advanced weaponry but will receive enough arms to
make it a threat to its neighbors, thus destabilizing its geographic region. This
then provides the pretext for the Globalists to later invade the country in the
name of saving the region from collapse, citing dangerous weapons of mass
destruction that the Globalists had provided the rogue state with in the first place.



We are in the arena of geopolitical chess. A move is only made after the
subsequent twenty moves have already been mapped out.

In December of 2002, Irag compiled a dossier to be sent to the United Nations
detailing records of how their weapons program had developed and what steps
they had taken to abandon it. Iraqg merely listed the source of their weapons —
from which companies they had acquired the weapons that now made them the
target of an imminent U.S. invasion. The companies listed were largely either
American or British, namely,

Honeywell

Spectra Physics

Semetex

Tl Coating

Unisys

Sperry Corp.

Tektronix

Rockwell

Leybold Vacuum Systems
Finnigan-MAT-US
Hewlett-Packard

Dupont

Eastman Kodak

American Type Culture Collection
Alcolac International

Consarc

Carl Zeiss

Cerberus

Electronic Associates
International Computer Systems
Bechtel

EZ Logic Data Systems, Inc.
Canberra Industries Inc.

Axel Electronics Inc.

Euromac Ltd-Uk

C. Plath-Nuclear

Endshire Export Marketing
International Computer Systems
MEED International

Walter Somers Ltd.
International Computer Limited
Matrix Churchill Corp.

Ali Ashour Daghir

International Military Services



Sheffield Forgemasters
Technology Development Group
International Signal and Control
Terex Corporation

Inwako

TMG Engineering

XYY Options, Inc*

By pure coincidence, the Americans seized the document before it could be
passed on to the U.N. Security Council. They edited out 8,000 pages, more than
two-thirds of the entire dossier, citing its contents as ‘risky’. CFR henchman Kofi
Annan made noticeably little fuss, describing the theft as ‘unfortunate,’ but angry
U.N. diplomats did see that the original contents were leaked to a German media
source. U.S. war hawks pounced on the ‘gaps’ that they had personally created,
citing them as a material breach of U.N. resolutions,

A UN source in New York said: “The questions being asked are valid. What did the US take out?
And if weapons inspectors are supposed to be checking against the dossier's content, how can
any fltéture claim be verified. In effect the US is saying trust us, and there are many who just will
not.”

British Foreign Secretary Jack Straw bemoaned ‘big gaps’ in the Iraqi
declaration. U.S. Secretary of State Colin Powell called the omissions
‘troublesome’. The Americans seized and edited the document because it was
proof that the so-called Iraq threat was a result of U.S. and British government-
approved companies illegally arming Iraq throughout the 1980’s and even into
the 1990’s. The Associated Press reported,

Irag's bioweapons program, which U.S. President George W. Bush wants to eradicate, got its
start with help from Uncle Sam two decades ago, according to government records getting new
scrutiny in light of the discussion of war against Iraq.™®

These records were a 1994 Senate Banking Committee report and a 1995 follow-
up letter from The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention to the Senate.
The CDC is a deeply corrupt New World Order attack arm and exists to
proliferate disease rather than prevent it. The full checklist of horrors that the
U.S. government graciously handed over to Iraq included the following,

e Anthrax: The American Type Culture Collection, a biological samples
repository in Manassas, Va., sent two shipments of anthrax to Iraq in the
1980s. Three anthrax strains were in a May 1986 shipment sent to the
University of Baghdad, which UN inspectors later linked to Iraq's biological
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weapons program. A 1988 shipment from ATCC to Iraq also included four
anthrax strains.

VX Nerve Gas: The Iraqgi Air Force began using chemical agents against
Kurdish resistance forces in northern Iraq in late 1987, provoking outrage
on Capitol Hill, particularly after the now infamous March 1988 attack on
the Kurdish village of Halabja. This was cited as a fundamental reason
justifying the invasion of Iraqg.

Pralidoxine: An antidote to nerve gas which can be easily back-
engineered to create nerve gas. U.S. Defense Department Documents
detail that Britain sold the drug to Iraq in March 1992, AFTER the Iraqis
had gassed the Kurds and AFTER the end of the Gulf War. The Sunday
Herald reported,

The shipments to Iraq went on even after Saddam Hussein ordered the gassing of the Kurdish
town of Halabja, in which at least 5000 men, women and children died. The atrocity, which
shocked the world, took place in March 1988, but a month later the components and materials of
weapons of mass destruction were continuing to arrive in Baghdad."’

West Nile Virus: West Nile virus was actually used as a bio-weapon to
attack America, Israel and Saudi Arabia from the late 1990’s onwards.
You didn’t hear about it because the mosquito-borne agent was also given
to Hussein by the U.S., as outlined in the CDC letter. An Iraqi defector
reported in 1997 that Saddam had bragged he would use West Nile to
attack the U.S. and that his scientists had developed an unusual strain of
the virus. The first outbreak in New York City was by way of an ‘unusual
strain’ of the virus.*®

Botulinum: Iraq admitted making 20,000 liters of botulinum toxin, a deadly
poison produced by the Clostridium botulinum bacteria, and putting some
of it into weapons. The American Type Culture Collection sent six strains
of Clostridium botulinum to the University of Baghdad in the May 1986
shipment. The September 1988 ATCC shipment to Iraq also contained
one strain of Clostridium botulinum. In March 1986, the CDC sent samples
of botulinum toxin and botulinum toxoid (used to make a vaccine against
botulinum poisoning) directly to Iraqg's al-Muthanna complex, a center for
Irag's chemical weapons program and the site where Irag restarted its
dormant biological weapons program in 1985.

Gas Gangrene: Gas gangrene, caused by the Clostridium Perfringens
bacteria, causes toxic gases to form inside the body, killing tissues and
causing internal bleeding, lung and liver damage. ATCC sent three strains
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of Clostridium Perfringens to the University of Baghdad in the May 1986
shipment and another three strains in the 1988 shipment.

These examples are just a handful of the almost two dozen forms of viruses,
retroviruses, bacteria and fungi provided by the U.S. to Iraqi labs during the 80’s
and 90's.

The usual retort to the fact that the U.S. armed Iraq is, ‘oh but they were our
allies against the Iranians’ — just like Osama bin Laden was our ally against the
Soviets. Firstly there is no ‘us’ or ‘we’ — a government that knowingly sends a
country nerve gas to kill its own citizens as with the Kurds cannot be said to be
acting in our best wishes. Just think how many times the line ‘but they killed their
own people’ has been used to justify Gulf War Il. That's not what these same war
hawks said about it at the time,

Another veteran of the programme said the Pentagon "wasn't so horrified by Iraq's use of gas. It
was just another way of killing people - whether by bullet or phosgene, it didn't make any
difference."**

Secondly, if it was all one big accident and just a quirk of geopolitics at the time,
then why don’t they admit it? Why do the column inches never mention the fact
that the latest bogeyman is always a creation of those who want to ‘protect us’
from him. Donald Rumsfeld and Colin Powell were eager to tell us how much of a
threat Saddam is but when questioned about who set up his weapons program
they seemed to have an uncanny knack of sudden amnesia. Powell dismissed
the proven documentation as “dead wrong” and ‘Mr. Aspartame’ Rumsfeld goes
all foggy whenever the subject is raised. Powell went before the U.N. Security
Council on February 5th 2003 to present evidence of the Iragi weapons program
and their links with Al-Qaeda. This is a sick joke because Powell and the criminal
administrations he has worked for have direct links to arming and empowering
both Al-Qaeda and Iraqg, while it's common knowledge for anyone that can read
that Iraq and Al-Qaeda are and always have been sworn enemies.

Both Rumsfeld and Powell were pivotal players in beefing up Iraq’s military
prowess,

Donald Rumsfeld, the US Defence Secretary and one of the most strident critics of Saddam
Hussein, met the Iragi President in 1983 to ease the way for US companies to sell Baghdad
biological and chemical weapons components, including anthrax and bubonic plague cultures,
according to newly declassified US Government documents.”

The ‘warm handshake’ between then Middle East envoy Rumsfeld and Hussein
was captured on film and is a perfect example of how a picture can destroy a
thousand hypocritical words. After U.S. intelligence confirmed that Iraq was using
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chemical weapons on an almost daily basis against both in the war against Iran
and domestically, Ronald Reagan signed secret National Security Decision
Directive 114, one of few Reagan era foreign policy documents that remains
classified. The directive stated that the United States would do “whatever was
necessary and legal” to prevent Iraq from losing the war with Iran. Selling
biological weapons to Hussein was only deemed ‘legal’ because the State
Department had lovingly removed Iraq from the list of terrorist sponsors the
previous yeatr.

[INSERT FIG 4.2] [CAPTION: Donald Rumsfeld, shown in December 1983 shaking hands with
Iragi President Saddam Hussein in Baghdad, before agreeing to sell him the chemical and
biological weapons which Rumsfeld’s own administration would use to justify attacking Irag in
2003.]

In recent interviews Rumsfeld lied by saying he “cautioned” Saddam Hussein
about the use of chemical weapons when the declassified State Department
minutes of the meeting state no such thing. The mishap was covered up by
Pentagon spokesman Brian Whitman, who changed the story by saying that the
comments were made to Iraqi foreign minister Tariq Aziz.

The Washington Post reported,

According to a sworn court affidavit prepared by Teicher (NSC official under Reagan) in 1995, the
United States "actively supported the Iraqi war effort by supplying the Iragis with billions of dollars
of credits, by providing military intelligence and advice to the Iraqgis, and by closely monitoring
third country arms sales to Iraq to make sure Iraq had the military weaponry required.” Teicher
said in the affidavit that former CIA director William Casey used a Chilean company, Cardoen, to
supply Iraq with cluster bombs that could be used to disrupt the Iranian human wave attacks.
Teicher refuses to discuss the affidavit.”*

This military support included more than 60 defense intelligence agency officers
who secretly provided information on Iranian deployments, tactical planning for
battles, plans for air strikes and bomb-damage assessments. As Reagan’s
national security advisor, Colin Powell had intimate knowledge and influence
over this operation.

Powell played the role of being cautious against a second war on Irag all along
until his ‘Adlai Stevenson moment’ U.N. presentation. This was subtle
manipulation to make people think, ‘oh even the dove now wants war, perhaps
the war is just’. From Grenada to Panama, whenever there’s a blatantly unjust
war to be waged, Powell’'s always there to put a respectable sheen on it.

In July of 1990, after years of building the Iragi war machine, Secretary of State
James Baker (business partner of both the Bush’s and bin Laden’s) dispatched
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American ambassador April Glaspie to Iraq where she told Saddam Hussein,

“We have no opinion on your Arab-Arab conflicts, such as your dispute with Kuwait. Secretary [of
State James] Baker has directed me to emphasize the instruction ... that Kuwait is not associated
with America.”*

This gave Hussein the green light to invade and after a few invented stories
about Iraqgi soldiers throwing Kuwaiti babies out of incubators, the West feverishly
allied and war was declared. 500,000 dead Iraqi civilians later and we enter the
second and final phase of what is, in President Herbert Walker Bush’s own
words, “The opportunity to fulfill the long-held promise of a New World Order.”*
In 2003, the Bush administration was still arming Saddam Hussein while it
prepared to go to war with Iraq. The Export Administration Act, which passed the
Senate and looks set to pass the House, would weaken already casual controls
over the export of sophisticated computer technology. Both Clinton and George
W. Bush sold the technology to China, which is a key component in the design of
nuclear bombs.

Insight Magazine reported,

The Bush administration has been "as bad, if not worse" than the Clinton administration when it
comes to the transfer of sensitive technologies to the People's Republic of China (PRC), claims
Tom Fitton, president of Judicial Watch, a nonpartisan public-interest law firm. Fitton says the
Bush administration even has "relaxed the rules put in place during the Clinton years."
Specifically, he tells Insight, the administration has allowed the transfer of "computer technology
[whose] only practical purpose is for nuclear-weapon design."**

China has had no qualms in the past about reselling such technology to Iraq and
yet a bill that the Center for Security Policy refers to as the ‘Arm Saddam Act’ has
the unbridled support of the Bush administration. Five Republican U.S. senators
wrote a letter to President Bush,

It "warns that China is using legally acquired U.S. dual-use technology to modernize its military.”
Electronic warfare capabilities have been accomplished "mainly through cooperation with
Western companies and by reverse engineering.” Further, the senators tell the president, "it is
important to note that Beijing continues to transfer dual-use technology to states that support
international terror networks,” and in fact "have exported substantial dual-use telecommunications
equipment and technology to Iraq.”*®

At time of press, the bill looked set to receive instant approval on Capitol Hill.
Democrats and Republicans are not separate entities — they are a ‘Hobson’s
Choice’ — both abide by the same policies because they are following the same
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agenda.
The agenda is order out of manufactured chaos.
How To Deal With a Psychopath: Give Him Nuclear Bombs

In late 2002, North Korea carried out its threat to remove UN seals and dismantle
monitoring cameras at a laboratory used to produce weapons-grade plutonium.
In January 2003 the country withdrew from the Nuclear Non-Proliferation Treaty
(NPT), which seeks to control the spread of nuclear technology. The country
threatened countless times to utilize its nuclear arsenal, which is already vast
according to many experts.

On Christmas Eve 2002, Pyongyang vowed to “destroy the earth” if anyone
interfered with its interests. A similar threat was issued on February 6th 2003
when North Korea publicly stated it would wage “total war” on the United States
by way of a pre-emptive nuclear strike. Propaganda posters from the country
show missiles hitting the White House and other famous landmarks, along with
North Korean soldiers depicted as giants, crushing American soldiers in their
hands.

North Korea is controlled by a hereditary Stalinist dictatorship that has starved
two million of its citizens to death in favor of building a million-man army. Some
people put the figure at four million, one-quarter of the population. In the far north
of the country there is a network of forced labor gulags where people who have
‘expressed a bland political opinion’ are, along with their entire families, tortured,
raped and executed. Horrific bio-chemical experiments are performed on mass
numbers of people. Babies are delivered and then stamped to death by the camp
guards. If the mother screams while the guards are stamping on the baby’s neck,
she is immediately assassinated by a firing squad. These guards are rewarded
with bonuses and promotions for ripping out prisoners’ eyeballs. MSNBC
published satellite photos of the concentration camps,

Plainly visible are acres upon acres of barracks, laid out in regimented military style. Surrounding
each of them is 10-foot-high barbed-wire fencing along with land mines and man traps. There is
even a battery of anti-aircraft guns to prevent a liberation by airborne troops.?

[INSERT FIG 4.3] [CAPTION: A satellite image of the barracks and other facilities of Camp 22 at
Haengyong in northeastern North Korea.]

Does this sound like a regime that would respond to ‘diplomatic negotiations’?
Saddam Hussein is a puppy compared to Kim Jong-Il and yet where is the
invasion of North Korea? Where are the forces of the ‘free’ world? The New

%0 Death, terror in N. Korea gulag’ — Robert Windrem — MSNBC — January 15 2003 -
http://www.msnbc.com/news/859191.asp?0cl=cR




American magazine succinctly outlined the difference between North Korea and
Iraq,

Crippled by the 1991 UN-led Gulf War, intermittent bombings by U.S. and British aircraft, and 12
years of devastating sanctions, Saddam’s military poses little threat to Irag’s neighbors, let alone
the United States. North Korea, on the other hand, boasts the world’s fourth-largest military; it has
37,000 U.S. troops within easy striking range of its artillery. Seoul, the South Korean capital, is 34
miles away from the demilitarized zone and well within striking distance of North Korean artillery
tubes. And Kim'’s regime has successfully tested the Taepo Dong, a missile capable of hitting
Japan; the missile’s next generation may be able to strike Alaska.?’

President Bush publicly claims to loathe Kim Jong-Il and yet his administration
has, like Bill Clinton’s before him, armed North Korea to the teeth with anything
up to and beyond 200 nuclear bombs.

Every other month the media report on how the U.S. continues to transfer highly
sensitive material to North Korea, all the while fear mongering about how it's not
a matter of if but when a city gets nuked. This isn't merely a case of double
standards - it's absolute lunacy. Under the 1994 Agreed Framework, the Clinton
administration agreed to replace North Korea’s domestically built nuclear
reactors with light water nuclear reactors. So-called government-funded ‘experts’
stated that light water reactors couldn’t be used to make bombs. Not so
according to Henry Sokolski, head of the Non-proliferation Policy Education
Centre in Washington,

"LWRs could be used to produce dozens of bombs' worth of weapons-grade plutonium in both
North Korea and Iran. This is true of all LWRs -- a depressing fact U.S. policymakers have
managed to block out."?®

Sokolski has also gone on the record as saying,

"These reactors are like all reactors, they have the potential to make weapons. So you might end
up supplying the worst nuclear violator with the means to acquire the very weapons we're trying
to prevent it acquiring."*®

The U.S. State Department contends that the light water reactors cannot be used
to produce bomb grade material and yet in 2002 urged Russia to end its nuclear
co-operation with Iran for the reason that it doesn’t want Iran armed with
weapons of mass destruction. Russia is building light water reactors in Iran. The
State Department announced on its own web site,

In the official answer to a question asked at the January 31 State Department daily briefing, the
State Department said the United States has "consistently urged Russia to cease all [nuclear]
cooperation with Iran, including its assistance to the light water reactor at Bushehr."

2 ‘Aiding and Abetting the Axis’ - William Norman Grigg — The New American — February 24 2003 -
http://www.thenewamerican.com/tna/2003/02-24-2003/v019n004_korea.htm

‘Nuclear Succor for North Korea’ — Matt Bivens — Moscow Times — Septemner 16 2002 — available at
http://asp.afghanwar.spb.ru/cgi/answer e.asp?ID=525

‘US grants N Korea nuclear funds’ — BBC — April 3 2002 — http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/world/asia-pacific/1908571.stm




"We have underscored to Russia that an end to Russian nuclear assistance to Iran would allow
the United States and Russia to reap the full promise of our new strategic relationship, benefiting
Russia economically and strategically far more than any short-term gain from construction of
additional reactors or other sensitive transfers to Iran."*

Therefore according to the State Department, light water reactors in Iran can
produce nuclear material but somehow the same rule doesn’t apply in North
Korea.

More hypocrisy is encountered when we learn that the United States’ closest ally
Britain has also shipped bomb grade material to Iran. Sources for the BBC
disclosed that the UK government rubber stamped the shipment of key nuclear
weapons-grade material to Iran, who have publicly stated their desire to build an
atomic bomb,

The programme has also interviewed a leading nuclear weapons expert in the UK who says that
the Beryllium and other items which the DTI has licensed to Iran add up to a shopping list for a
nuclear weapons programme.>*

Many questioned why, in late September 2001, UK Foreign Secretary Jack Straw
was suddenly dispatched to Iran to meet with Iranian President Mohammad
Khatami. Behind the public facade of 'diplomatic discussion' it is now clear that
Straw was bartering for the sale of metal beryllium, a key component for the
manufacture of nuclear weapons. This, despite a ban on the sale of arms to Iran
under international protocol. Metal beryllium has virtually no conventional use
and is exclusive to the development of nuclear weapons.

Let us return to the issue of North Korea and light water reactors. Light water
reactors are far more expensive to build than coal or gas-fired plants so we can
safely conclude that arming North Korea’s nuclear arsenal is not a matter of
saving money. On the contrary, it’s like handing a psychopath a loaded gun.

The 1994 Agreed Framework deal gave North Korea the capacity to generate
enough nuclear fuel to produce almost 100 nuclear bombs per year. A 1999
congressional study undertaken by the House North Korea Advisory Group
warned,

Through the provision of two light water reactors [LWRs] under the 1994 Agreed Framework, the
United States, through KEDO, will provide North Korea with the capacity to produce annually
enough fissile material for nearly 100 nuclear bombs, should the Democratic People's Republic of
Korea [DPRK] decide to violate the Nonproliferation Treaty [NPT].*

The group further cautioned that the country that receives the largest amount of

% ‘State Department on Russia-Iran Nuclear Cooperation’ — U.S. Department of State — January 31 2003 -
http://usinfo.state.gov/topical/pol/arms/03020321.htm

= ‘UK sells bomb material to Iran’ — BBC — September 23 2002 - http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/uk politics/2275249.stm
3 ‘Clinton Deal Gave N. Korea 100-Nuke-Per-Year Capacity’ — Carl Limbacher — Newsmax — October 19 2002 -
http://www.newsmax.com/showinside.shtml?a=2002/10/19/114657




U.S. foreign aid in the Asia-Pacific region now has the ability to strike the
mainland United States with chemical, biological or nuclear weapons. Two
renowned nuclear scientists briefed the panel, namely Dr. Victor Gilinsky, a
former Member of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission during the Ford and
Carter administrations and former head of the Physical Sciences Department at
the RAND Corporation, and Dr. William R. Graham, a former Science Advisor to
President Reagan and Deputy Administrator of NASA. The scientists cautioned,

The light water reactors could produce about 500 kilograms of plutonium annually. They are so
much larger than the facilities North Korea stopped building, they will actually produce more
plutonium than the gas graphite plants they will replace.*

If the United States government were really interested in upholding vital national
security interests, they would immediately halt the construction of reactors and all
aid to North Korea, and yet under the ‘conservative’ Bush regime the Clinton
program to arm North Korea is being implemented. The North Korean people are
enslaved by a government that is using food as a weapon. Perhaps this is why
The EU and the United States, via the UN World Food Program, resumed the
shipment of hundreds of thousands of tons in food aid at the end of February
2003. This goes directly to the sitting dictatorship, which then decides who gets it
by their level of allegiance to the state. Food aid only increases the power of Kim
Jong-1l and yet it is veiled by the UN in bleeding heart humanitarian rhetoric. The
money goes straight to enabling the North Korean leadership to live in the lap of
westernized luxury with casinos and lavish new cars (there’s that working class
communist ethic shining through).

In April 2002 the Bush administration announced that it would release $95 million
of American taxpayer’s dollars to begin construction of the ‘harmless’ light water
reactors. Bush argued that arming the megalomaniac dictator Kim Jong-Il with
the potential to produce a hundred nukes a year was, “vital to the national
security interests of the United States.” Bush released even more money in
January 2003, as reported by Bloomberg News,

President George W. Bush is seeking $3.5 million for the international consortium that continues
to build two nuclear reactors for North Korea, even as the U.S. confronts the communist regime
over nuclear arms.*

The company that got the contract to deliver equipment and services to build the
two light water reactor stations was ABB (Asea Brown Boveri), which describes
itself as, “a leader in power and automation technologies that enable utility and
industry customers to improve performance while lowering environmental
impact.” The contract was valued at $200 million and was signed in January

B ‘Clinton-Gore North Korea Aid Will Provide Plutonium for Nuclear Bombs, Scientists Warn’ — The House Policy
Committee — April 14 2000 -
http://web.archive.org/web/20011217031521/http://policy.house.gov/news/releases/2000/0414nk.htm
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2000.%®

[INSERT FIG 4.4] [CAPTION: One of the light water reactors than can produce nuclear material,
graciously handed to Kim Jong-Il by George W. Bush.]

It should not surprise us that our old friend Donald Rumsfeld, the man who paved
the way for U.S. companies to sell Irag chemical and biological weapons in 1983,
was an executive director for ABB from 2000-2001. Rumsfeld resigned when he
was appointed U.S. Secretary of Defense.*® Wolfram Eberhardt, a spokesman for
ABB confirmed that Rumsfeld was at nearly all the board meetings during his
involvement with the company. The meetings were held quarterly in Zurich,
Switzerland. However, Rumsfeld again displays his uncanny ability to forget
things in stating that he ‘doesn’t remember’ the issue of North Korea being
brought before the ABB board. Swiss Info concluded,

Rumsfeld’s position at ABB could prove embarrassing for the Bush administration since while he
was a director he was also active on issues of weagons proliferation, chairing the 1998
congressional Ballistic Missile Threat commission.®

Rumsfeld would obviously have been a major influence in settling the contract
that ensured Kim Jong-Il got his dirty hands on that nuclear material. In every
single instance, where there’s a crazy dictator to be armed, the same names step
on up to arm him. These criminals do care about the consequences of their
actions, because their actions are designed to obtain a specific consequence. If
there’s a despot that expresses a desire kill millions of people, the Globalists
always ensure the despot has the tools to do it.

North Korea has already fired nuclear-capable missiles that have hit America.
You didn’'t hear about it — why? Because how can an invasion of Iraq be justified
when another country known to possess nuclear weapons is already firing
missiles at America? It can’t, which is why CNN and the rest completely ignored
this Korea Times report,

The warhead of a long-range missile test-fired by North Korea was found in the U.S. state of
Alaska, a report to the National Assembly revealed yesterday.

“According to a U.S. document, the last piece of a missile warhead fired by North Korea was
found in Alaska,” former Japanese foreign minister Taro Nakayama was quoted as saying in the
report. “Washington, as well as Tokyo, has so far underrated Pyongyang’s missile capabilities.”*®

® ‘ABB to deliver systems, equipment to North Korean nuclear plants’ — ABB press release — January 20 2000 -
http://www.abb.com/global/abbzh/abbzh251.nsflOpenDatabase&db=/global/ABBZH/abbzh250.nsf&v=c&e=us&c=316DCE
EDCA12D32E4125686C00433604
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Ask yourself why an incident that should have made national and international
headlines for weeks wasn't even reported on in America. North Korea has
threatened to and is capable of striking an American city with a nuclear missile at
any time. The fact that they are further down the list of potential targets is proof
that this pre-emptive doctrine is not about protecting America, it is about carefully
coordinated imperial expansion. The Globalists are using American military might
to construct a New World Order.

The ultimate agenda behind arming North Korea is to later invade the country
and acquire a staging ground to challenge Chinese dominance of North East
Asia. China is well aware that any U.S. led takeover of the country will result in
American troops stationed on China’s Manchurian border. Within Chinese
political and military circles, it is universally acknowledged that one of the
strategic aims of future American aggression against North Korea is to position
the U.S. for a devastating confrontation with China. Perhaps the Chinese should
expect this because they continue to provide North Korea with chemical,
biological and nuclear-arms goods and missile systems.

Many analysts agree that a looming U.S.-China clash will be the catalyst for
world war three. Rest assured, the whole thing was planned that way.



Chapter 5

9/11: Countdown to Terror — Warnings Ignored

The subject of September 11 is so broad in its scope that it cannot be detailed
from just one perspective. In the following three chapters | will cover the events
before, during and after the terrorist attacks on New York and Washington.
Initially we will document the overwhelming amount of evidence indicating that
the US knew the attacks were about to take place. The question of why the
attacks took place despite the fact that they could have been prevented runs
parallel throughout this extended section of the book.

It is important to note that the official story of 9/11 can be dismantled from two or
more different angles. If we are to believe that nineteen suicide hijackers carried
out the attacks on behalf of Al-Qaeda then it can be proven that these men were
trained, funded and allowed into the country by the U.S. establishment. They
were tracked and traced and their intentions were well known by the authorities,
many months and even years before that fateful day. | will present the evidence
to verify these claims in this chapter. In the following chapter | will switch to the
second and more cutting edge angle of research, namely that the Al-Qaeda plot
was merely a smokescreen to shadow who really carried out the attacks and
what methods were used.

Alleged Hijackers Trained at U.S Air Bases

Common sense suggests that to prevent future acts of suicide hijacking, one
needs to go to the source of the hijacker’s training and shut it down. At the very
least, stern questions need to be asked concerning why three or more of the
alleged September 11 perpetrators were trained at one of the USA's foremost
Naval complexes, and why this shocking notion received scant media attention
and was subsequently subject to a complete press blackout.

September 14th, just three days after the attack on America, FBI director Robert
S. Mueller stated, "perhaps one could have averted this."* This was in response
to reports confirming that several of the suicide hijackers had received flight
training within the United States. For the moment we will set aside the shocking
revelation that seven or more of the named nineteen suicide hijackers are still
alive, this evidence will appear later. For the sake of clarity, at this point we will
work from the notion that the FBI's nineteen named hijackers are actually the
ones who carried out the September 11 atrocities, albeit operating under slightly
changed birth dates and/or names with regard to the discrepancies between
military training records and the official FBI list.

! ‘FBI Knew Terrorists Were Using Flight Schools’ - Steve Fainaru and James V. Grimaldi — Washington Post —
September 23 2001 - http://www.washingtonpost.com/ac3/ContentServer?pagename=article&articleid=A10840-
2001Sep22&node=nation/specials/attacked/archive




The Pensacola Naval Air Station is recognized as the premier naval installation in
the Department of the Navy. The Complex in Escambia and Santa Rosa counties
employs more than 16,000 military and 7,400 civilian personnel. It is also where
as many as four of the FBI's nineteen suspected suicide hijackers participated in
the facility's flight training program for foreign military trainees in the 1990's.?
Three of these individuals listed their addresses on drivers’ licenses and car
registrations as the Naval Air Station in Pensacola, Fla. according to a high-
ranking U.S. Navy source.®> Namely, Saeed Alghamdi and Ahmad Alnami, who
allegedly were two of the four men that hijacked United Airlines Flight 93 and
subsequently crashed in Stony Creek Township, Pennsylvania, and Ahmed
Alghamdi, alleged co-hijacker of United Airlines Flight 75, which hit the south
tower of the World Trade Center. Military records also confirm that the three used
their address as 10 Radford Boulevard, a base roadway on which residences for
foreign military flight trainees are located.

The Florida link is clear. The FBI lists no less than eleven of the hijackers as
having lived or living in Florida, including six in the Delray Beach area alone. It is
also interesting to note that several of the hijackers, including the lead hijacker
Mohamed Atta, lived in Hollywood, hardly a puritanical hotbed of Islamic
fundamentalism.

With regard to the three Pensacola students, it is confirmed that their training
was financed by Saudi Arabia, birthplace of the majority of the nineteen hijackers
and a supposed ally of the United States. Days after Newsweek published this
story, Florida Democratic Senator Bill Nelson angrily faxed a message to
Attorney General John Ashcroft, demanding to know if it was correct. The
response was a deafening silence. A spokesman for Senator Nelson
subsequently stated,

“In the wake of those reports we asked about the Pensacola Naval Air Station but we never got a
definitive answer from the Justice Department. So we asked the FBI for an answer ‘if and when’
they could provide us one. Their response to date has been that they are trying to sort through
something complicated and difficult.”

The FBI never did provide an answer. The Pensacola-terrorist link has been
buried. The story broke in a few mainstream publications in mid-September 2001
but has since vanished. Chairman of the Senate Intelligence Committee Bob
Graham also requested information on the Pensacola tie-in. We must assume
that he was also stonewalled or otherwise told to keep the information
confidential, due to the fact that, once again, this story has not since appeared in
the mainstream media.

2 ‘Pensacola NAS link faces more scrutiny’ — Larry Wheeler — Pensacola News Journal — September 17 2001 — available
at http://www.propagandamatrix.com/pensacola_nas_link_scrutiny.html
3 ‘Alleged Hijackers May Have Trained at U.S. Bases’ - George Wehrfritz, Catharine Skipp and John Barry — Newsweek —
September 15 2001 - http://www.msnbc.com/news/629529.asp?cpl=1
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The Clinton Administration’s Protection of Terrorists

The government terrorism paradigm is by no means divided down party lines.
The Clinton administration provided the framework from which Al-Qaeda grew in
stature. The September 11 plot could have been crushed in the last years of the
20th century.

It is accepted that the complex sequence of events we saw unfold on September
11th would have generated an excessive volume of communications - whether
by radio, cell phone, land line, fax or modem - among the terrorists, among their
Middle-Eastern sponsors and among commercial contacts here and abroad. The
contention that the NSA purposefully avoided intercepting Al-Qaeda
communication doesn't even have to be debated when it is known that bin
Laden's network had the sophisticated communication equipment necessary to
duck detection up until the late nineties. And who sold them that equipment? As
was the case with Iraq, the U.S. Government. The Clinton administration
provided the terrorist supporting nation of Syria with spread-spectrum radios,
fiber optics and highly advanced computer networks that are invulnerable to
wiretap. Syria in turn passed this technology on to numerous terrorist cells
around the world, including Al-Qaeda. According to World Net Daily,

The dozen or so Islamic terrorists who pulled off the plot to strike at America's nerve centers in
New York and Washington spent at least five years researching, planning and coordinating the
surprise attacks, U.S. security officials say. And they did it completely in secret, using the world's
most sophisticated telecommunications equipment, some secured by advanced encryption
technology that most armies don't have...the NSA wasn't able to detect the Islamic terrorists' plot
because of the high quality of the communications gear that they've been acquiring over the last
couple of years, thanks to the Clinton administration's decontrols on advanced
telecommunications equipment.®

However, this was by no means the only way in which Clinton and his
administration proliferated the activities of the international Al-Qaeda network.
Clinton security chiefs repeatedly rejected vital intelligence that would have
resulted in stifling numerous worldwide terror cells, primarily Osama bin Laden
and Al-Qaeda. The government of Sudan offered to both arrest bin Laden or at
least closely monitor his activities within the country, and turn over files, some an
inch and a half thick, a vast database on bin Laden and more than 200 leading
members of his Al-Qaeda network. They included photographs, and information
on their families, backgrounds and contacts. Most were 'Afghan Arabs', Saudis,
Yemenis and Egyptians who had fought with bin Laden against the Soviets in
Afghanistan. These resources would, according to a former Clinton
administration official, have entailed that "we probably would have never seen a
September 11." Clinton's Secretary of State Madeleine Albright responded to the
offer by giving the order for US missiles to blast the al-Shifa medicine factory,

° ‘US equipped terror sponsors’ — Paul Sperry — World Net Daily — September 12 2001 -
http://www.wnd.com/news/article.asp?ARTICLE |D=24466

‘Demagoguing September 11’ — Editorial — Washington Times — May 21 2002 —
http://www.washtimes.com/op-ed/20020521-998991.htm




which supplied 60 per cent of Sudan's medicines, and had contracts to make
vaccines with the UN.

[INSERT FIG 5.1] [CAPTION: The Clinton administration was instrumental in protecting the Al-
Qaeda network. The Monica Lewinsky scandal was released intentionally to distract the American
public from this treasonous activity.]

In the spring of 1996, Sudan, using a back channel direct from its president to the
CIA, offered to arrest bin Laden and place him in custody in Saudi Arabia. The
initial meeting took place at a hotel in Arlington, Virginia, on March 3 of that year.
One of the officials who oversaw this and subsequent engagements was
Mansoor ljaz, a member of the Council on Foreign Relations and chairman of a
New York-based investment company. He states,

“From 1996 to 1998, | opened unofficial channels between Sudan and the Clinton administration.
I met with officials in both countries, including Clinton, U.S. National Security Advisor Samuel R.
"Sandy" Berger and Sudan's president and intelligence chief. President Omar Hassan Ahmed
Bashir, who wanted terrorism sanctions against Sudan lifted, offered the arrest and extradition of
Bin Laden and detailed intelligence data about the global networks constructed by Egypt's Islamic
Jihad, Iran's Hezbollah and the Palestinian Hamas. Among those in the networks were the two
hijackers who piloted commercial airliners into the World Trade Center. The silence of the Clinton
administration in responding to these offers was deafening.”’

The Saudi Fahd Monarchy didn’t treat bin Laden’s proposed extradition to Saudi
Arabia with enthusiasm. Geopolitical hesitation meant that the White House did
not press the Saudis on this issue at all. This meant that, following intense
pressure from Saudi Arabia and the U.S., Sudan agreed to expel bin Laden and
up to 300 of his associates. They were now free to leave for Afghanistan,
providing total anonymity and escaping the sophisticated tracking methods that
the Sudanese were capable of and had offered. Subsequent analysis by U.S.
intelligence confirms bin Laden had full access to his Sudanese assets from his
new position in Afghanistan, directly contradicting a previously held White House
assumption that it was valuable in itself to force bin Laden out of Sudan,
supposedly tearing him away from his extensive network of business,
investments and training camps. This thinking was proven woefully inaccurate.
Sudanese intelligence believed this to be a great mistake and indeed it had
disastrous consequences,

Sudan expelled Mr. bin Laden on May 18, 1996, to Afghanistan. From there, he is thought to
have planned and financed the bombings of the U.S. embassies in Kenya and Tanzania in 1998,
the near-destruction of the American destroyer Cole in Yemen last year and the devastation in
New York and Washington on Sept. 11.2

! ‘Clinton Let Bin Laden Slip Away and Metastasize’ — Mansoor ljaz — L.A. Times — December 5 2001 — available at
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On the surface, it would seem bitterness and paranoia towards Sudan was
responsible for the outright refusal to take up their numerous offers. The US
proclaimed the country as being a 'terrorist state,' and the subsequent Bush
administration has made noises about making Sudan one of the next targets in
their crusade. This, despite the fact that in May 2001, a joint CIA/FBI
investigative team concluded that Africa's largest country is in no way a sponsor
of international terrorism. Sudan has its own internal problems. Over the past two
decades, a civil war pitting black Christians and animists in the south against the
Arab-Muslims of the north has cost at least 1.5 million lives in war and famine-
related deaths, as well as the displacement of millions of others.

Since this story broke in late 2001, former members of the Clinton administration
have trashed it as being a complete fabrication. Then perhaps they could explain
why Clinton himself admitted the Sudan affair in a February 15 2002 Long Island
Association speech,

"Mr. bin Laden used to live in Sudan," Clinton explained to a Feb. 15 Long Island Association
luncheon.

"He was expelled from Saudi Arabia in 1991, then he went to Sudan. And we'd been hearing that
the Sudanese wanted America to start meeting with them again.

"They released him," the ex-president confirmed.

"At the time, 1996, he had committed no crime against America so | did not bring him here
because we had no basis on which to hold him, though we knew he wanted to commit crimes
against America.

"So | pleaded with the Saudis to take him, 'cause they could have," Clinton explained. "But they
thought it was a hot potato and they didn't and that's how he wound up in Afghanistan."®

The Sudan-Clinton fiasco is just a drop in the ocean in the context of how Al-
Qaeda could have been stopped at numerous different points in the build up to
September 11. According to one senior CIA source,

"This represents the worst single intelligence failure in this whole terrible business. It is the key to
the whole thing right now. It is reasonable to say that had we had this data we may have had a
better chance of preventing the attacks."*

Planes as Weapons

When September 11 prior knowledge broke in the mainstream media in May of
2002 most of the ‘debate’ focused on the use of planes as bombs and whether or
not intelligence agencies had considered this method of attack. Although the
coverage was a whitewash in itself it can easily be proven that authorities knew

o ‘Clinton Admits: | Nixed Bin Laden Extradition Offer’ — Carl Limbacher — Newsmax — August 11 2002 -
http://www.newsmax.com/showinsidecover.shtml?a=2002/8/10/230919
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terrorists were likely to use airliners as bombs. Once this is known, those that
gave press conferences denying the jetliners as bombs foreknowledge, such as
Condoleeza Rice, George Tenet and George Bush, can be exposed as outright
liars.

On May 16, National Security Advisor Condoleeza Rice, who was warned
September 6 2001 “You must move more quickly on homeland security, an
attack is going to happen” by Senator Gary Hart, stated,

"l don't think anybody could have predicted that these people would take an airplane and slam it
into the World Trade Center, take another one and slam it into the Pentagon, that they would try
to use an airplane as a missile, a hijacked airplane as a missile.""*

Ari Fleischer, President Bush’s press secretary, again on May 16, stated,

“The President did not -- not -- receive information about the use of airplanes as missiles by
suicide bombers. This was a new type of attack that had not been foreseen.”?

President Bush, in a May 17 speech commented,

“Had | known that the enemy was going to use airplanes to kill on that fateful morning, | would
have done everything in my power to protect the American people.”*?

All of the above statements are false. There were numerous indications that the
method of a kamikaze attack using hijacked airliners was in the works.

In October 2000, the Pentagon conducted a series of simulations designed to
test the response to a commercial airliner crashing into their headquarters, as
took place on September 11th,

The fire and smoke from the downed passenger aircraft billows from the Pentagon courtyard.
Defense Protective Services Police seal the crash sight. Army medics, nurses and doctors
scramble to organize aid. An Arlington Fire Department chief dispatches his equipment to the
affected areas. Don Abbott, of Command Emergency Response Training, walks over to the
Pentagon and extinguishes the flames. The Pentagon was a model and the "plane crash" was a
simulated one. The Pentagon Mass Casualty Exercise, as the crash was called, was just one of
several scenarios that emergency response teams were exposed to Oct. 24-26 in the Office of
the Secretaries of Defense conference room.*

The CIA on the very morning of September 11th was also conducting a mock
exercise where a plane crashes into its headquarters. This exercise was
obviously planned before the terrorist attacks,

1 ‘For years, signs suggested that something was up’ — Bill Gertz — Washington Times — May 17 2002 -
http://www.washtimes.com/national/20020517-70217917.htm
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In what the government describes as a bizarre coincidence, one U.S. intelligence agency was
planning an exercise last Sept. 11 in which an errant aircraft would crash into one of its
buildings.™

Of course, every smoking gun you'll read about in these pages is just one in a
series of ‘bizarre coincidences’.

The US was warned in 1995 of a plot to hijack commercial planes and slam them
into the Pentagon and the World Trade Center. The plan was named Project
Bojinka and was uncovered by Philippine authorities. It originated with Ramzi
Yousef, one of the masterminds of the first WTC bombing in 1993. The
information was passed on to the FBI who totally ignored it,

The FBI was warned six years ago of a terrorist plot to hijack commercial planes and slam them
into the Pentagon, the CIA headquarters and other buildings, Philippine investigators told CNN.
Philippine authorities learned of the plot after a small fire in a Manila apartment, which turned out
to be the hideout of Ramzi Yousef, who was later convicted for his role in the 1993 bombing of
the World Trade Center. Yousef escaped at the time, but agents caught his right-hand man,
Abdul Hakim Murad, who told them a chilling tale. "Murad narrated to us about a plan by the
Ramzi cell in the continental U.S. to hijack a commercial plane and ram it into the CIA
headquarters in Langley, Virginia, and also the Pentagon," said Rodolfo Mendoza, a Philippine
intelligence investigator. Philippine investigators also found evidence targeting commercial towers
in San Francisco, Chicago and New York City. They said they passed that information on to the
FBI in 1995, but it's not clear what was done with it.*®

[INSERT FIG 5.2] [CAPTION: The World Trade Center was known to have been a target of
suicide hijackers since as far back as 1995.]

U.S. and lItalian officials were warned in July that Islamic terrorists might attempt
to kill President Bush and other leaders by crashing an airliner into the Genoa
summit of industrialized nations. They went so far as to mount anti-aircraft guns
at the city's airport,

U.S. and ltalian officials were warned in July that Islamic terrorists might attempt to kill President
Bush and other leaders by crashing an airliner into the Genoa summit of industrialized nations,
officials said Wednesday. Italian officials took the reports seriously enough to prompt
extraordinary precautions during the July summit of the Group of 8 nations, including closing the
airspace over Genoa and stationing antiaircraft guns at the city's airport...the reports suggest that
Western governments were aware that terrorists might one day use a hijacked airplane as a
suicide weapon--as they did Sept. 11 in attacks on the World Trade Center and the Pentagon.®’

15 ‘Agency planned exercise on Sept. 11 built around a plane crashing into a building’ — John J. Lumpkin — Associated
Press — August 21 — available at
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The BBC reported further,

Islamic extremists were said to be trying to hit Bush in the air,” Mr Fini told the Panorama news
magazine..."What | know is that intelligence (services) in Italy knew that an air attack was
considered to be possible and that was the reason why we closed the airspace in Genoa during
the G8 summit,” Mr Ruggiero said. Air defences were also established.™®

The worldwide Echelon spy network also gave British and German intelligence
clear information that terrorists were going to hijack commercial planes and use
them to attack symbols of American and Israeli culture,

U.S. and Israeli intelligence agencies received warning signals at least three months ago that
Middle Eastern terrorists were planning to hijack commercial aircraft to use as weapons to attack
important symbols of American and Israeli culture, according to a story in Germany's daily
Frankfurter Allgemeine Zeitung (FAZ). The FAZ, quoting unnamed German intelligence sources,
said that the Echelon spy network was being used to collect information about the terrorist
threats, and that U.K. intelligence services apparently also had advance warning. The FAZ, one
of Germany's most respected dailies, said that even as far back as six months ago western and
near-east press services were receiving information that such attacks were being planned...The
FAZ, in its news story, described the system as covering the whole world with 120 satellites. The
newspaper also said Israeli intelligence had collected information indicated that Arab terrorist
groups planned to hijack planes in Europe to use as weapons to attack targets in Tel Aviv and
other coastal cities in Israel."

The National Intelligence Council, which advises the president and U.S.
intelligence on emerging threats, issued a September 1999 report that again
emphasized Al-Qaeda were planning to hijack planes and ram them into
government and commercial buildings,

Suicide bomber(s) belonging to al Qaeda’'s Martyrdom Battalion could crash-land an aircraft
packed with high explosives (C-4 and semtex) into the Pentagon, the headquarters of the Central
Intelligence Agency (CIA), or the White House.?

Now we know government officials were briefed on an imminent terrorist attacks
using planes as bombs, it becomes clear why Attorney General John Ashcroft,
who's pre-9/11 budget requests didn’t include any money for anti-terrorism, was
avoiding commercial airlines,

In response to inquiries from CBS News over why Ashcroft was traveling exclusively by leased jet
aircraft instead of commercial airlines, the Justice Department cited what it called a "threat
assessment" by the FBI, and said Ashcroft has been advised to travel only by private jet for the
remainder of his term. "There was a threat assessment and there are guidelines. He is acting
under the guidelines," an FBI spokesman said. Neither the FBI nor the Justice Department,

18 ‘Extremists planned Genoa attack on Bush' — BBC — September 27 2001 -
http://news.bbc.co.uk/1/hi/world/europe/1566982.stm
19 ‘Echelon Gave Authorities Warning Of Attacks’ — Ned Stafford — Biz Report — September 13 2001 — available at
http://propagandamatrix.com/echelon_gave authorities warning_of attacks.html

‘Report Warned Of Suicide Hijackings’ — CBS News — May 17 2002 -
http://www.cbsnews.com/stories/2002/05/18/attack/main509488.shtml




however, would identify what the threat was, when it was detected or who made it.**

In April 2000, a man walked into the FBI field office in Newark and told agents
face to face of the plan to hijack airliners,

He said he was involved in a plot by Osama bin Laden to hijack a Boeing 747. He told agents that
he had learned hijacking techniques at a training camp in Pakistan and was meeting five or six
other hijackers in the United States who planned to overpower the plane's crew, according to the
report released last week by the congressional panel investigating the Sept. 11 attacks.*

British Intelligence, MI6, warned the CIA in 1999 and then again a month before
the attack that Al-Qaeda were about to hijack planes and use them as bombs,

MI6 warned the American intelligence services about a plot to hijack aircraft and crash them into
buildings two years before the September 11 attacks. Liaison staff at the American embassy in
Grosvenor Square in London were passed a secret report by MI6 in 1999 after the intelligence
service picked up indications from human intelligence sources (Humint) that Osama Bin Laden’s
followers were planning attacks in which civilian aircraft could be used in “unconventional ways”.?

This was just one of several reports that British Prime Minister Tony Blair was
briefed on by GCHQ, MI5 and MI6, including a July 16 memo which outlined the
fact that Osama bin Laden was in the final planning stages of an attack on
America. Since the CIA work jointly with British intelligence, the Americans were
well aware of these reports.

Al-Qaeda members in Italy was discussing a plot to use planes as weapons in
wiretaps heard by investigators thirteen months before September 11,

In one conversation, a suspected Yemeni terrorist tells an Egyptian based in Italy about a
massive strike against the enemies of Islam involving aircraft and the sky, a blow that "will be
written about in all the newspapers of the world."... "In the future, listen to the news and
remember these words: 'Above the head' ... remember well, remember well.... The danger in the
airports.... There are clouds in the sky there in international territory, in that country, the fire has
been lit and is awaiting only the wind," the Yemeni said...Later, according to the transcript, he
said the fight against Islam’'s enemies would be waged "with any means we can combat them,
using ... airplanes: They won't be able to stop us even with their heaviest weapons."24

An Al-Qaeda cell in Madrid, Spain was also taped by authorities discussing an
airborne attack plot. At the same time, Jordan and Morocco passed on
information to the US concerning a plot named ‘Great Wedding.’

Morocco had infiltrated an agent within Al-Qaeda who confirmed that ‘Great
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Wedding’ was the code name of an attack using aircraft. The Moroccan Secret
Service agent successfully infiltrated Al-Qaeda for two months before the 9/11
attacks. Hassan Dabou broke cover in the summer of 2001 to warn his bosses
that the terror group was plotting “something spectacular” in New York. The
operation was to be large scale and would occur in the summer or autumn of
2001. Secret service chiefs are said to have taken seriously the tip from one of its
veteran informants and immediately passed on the details to Washington.

As far back as eight years ago, reputable individuals were warning the American
government that highly symbolic U.S. targets were under threat of being attacked
by suicide hijackers using jetliners,

Military adviser Dr Marvin Cetron says he prepared a 250-page report for the US intelligence
agencies in 1993 which detailed his concerns - but it was ignored. "l said ... aircraft could hit the
White House or the Pentagon - making a left turn at the Washington Monument and running into
the White House, or a right turn and going into the Pentagon," Dr Cetron said. He added: "They
understood and they ignored it."*

The Pentagon was furious with Cetron for merely highlighting public reports of
previous planes-as-bombs incidents. They immediately ordered him to delete
warnings specific to these incidents from the report.

The 1999 edition of the FAA's annual report on Criminal Acts Against Aviation
stated that an exiled Islamic leader in Britain proclaimed in August 1998 that Mr.
bin Laden would "bring down an airliner, or hijack an airliner to humiliate the
United States."

In an October 3 2001 report, the New York Times documented just some of the
instances before September 11 where the motive of seizing control of a
commercial airliner and driving it into a building or structure was apparent,

...That was the December 1994 hijacking of an Air France flight in Algiers. The sponsor of the
hijacking was an organization called the Armed Islamic Group, which said it was trying to rid
Muslim Algeria of Western influence, specifically from France. Four young Algerians, members of
a subgroup called Phalange of the Signers in Blood, commandeered the plane at the airport and
ordered it to fly to Marseille, from which they said they wanted to fly to Paris.

But they demanded that it be loaded with 27 tons of fuel — about three times as much as
required for the flight to Paris. The plane was an Airbus A300, which is nearly as large as the
Boeing 767's that struck the World Trade Center. The French authorities determined from
hostages who had been released and from other sources that the group planned to explode the
plane over Paris or crash it into the Eiffel Tower...Eight months earlier, in April 1994, a flight
engineer at Federal Express who was facing a disciplinary hearing that could have ended his
career, boarded a DC-10 as a passenger and stormed into the cockpit with a hammer, hitting
each of the three members of the cockpit crew in the head and severely injuring all of them. They
wrestled him to the deck and regained control of the plane. Prosecutors said only that the man
wanted to crash the plane, but company employees have said he was trying to hit the building in
Memphis where the company sorts packages.

= ‘Washington was warned of hijack risk’ — London Telegraph — September 13 2001 — available at
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In between those two incidents, in September 1994, a lone pilot crashed a stolen single-engine
Cessna into a tree on the White House grounds just short of the president's bedroom.*

Congressional investigator Eleanor Hill headed a September 11 enquiry and
published a 30-page report. Despite media commentators and even Hill herself
labeling advance warning of a potential plot to fly planes into certain buildings as
‘vague’ — the report stated,

US agencies discovered that a group of unidentified Arabs planned to fly an explosive-laden
plane from a foreign country into the World Trade Center - but did little about it.2’

Arabs - plane - fly - into - World Trade Center. Oh yes - very vague. The same
report claimed that there were twelve indications that an attack was imminent
from March 2001. Twelve? | list nearly a hundred in this chapter alone, and
they’re all documented. The document also highlighted the fact that intelligence
agencies received at least a dozen reports of plans to use aircraft as weapons
since 1994.

In liberally quoting the mainstream sources above it can be established that the’
planes as bombs’ scenario was a distinct possibility and had been considered
numerous times before September 11. The Japanese used planes as bombs
when they attacked Pearl Harbor as far back as 1941.

| do not present this argument as evidence of prior knowledge of the attacks,
although many would categorize it as that too, but | simply point to the evidence
to prove that in stating this method of attack hadn’t been considered, Bush, Rice
and Fleischer were all lying and they knew it. No matter how much emotional bile
Condoleeza Rice was able to fake when she said, “I don't think anybody could
have predicted that these people would take an airplane and slam it into the
World Trade Center,” she was being overtly deceitful to the relatives of the dead
victims. If they lied about this, what else did they lie about?

The 20th Hijacker

The case of Zacarias Moussaoui, the so-called ‘20th hijacker’, again underscores
the planes as bombs issue. The repeated high-level blockades on his arrest and
investigation also introduce us to the next 9/11 smoking gun — why were FBI
agents obstructed from prosecuting Al-Qaeda members before September 11?
According to MSNBC,

The question being asked here is if they put two and two together, they could have gotten a lot

% ‘Earlier Hijackings Offered Signals That Were Missed’ — Matthew L. Wald — New York Times — October 3 2001 —
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more information about the guy - if not stopped the hijacking.?®

An individual at a flight school makes it clear that he is only interested in flying a
large passenger jet over New York City air space at cruising altitude, and has no
concern about taking off or landing. French intelligence repeatedly warns that this
individual is a member of Al-Qaeda. This alone you would suspect would
mandate a cursory search of the individual's computer hard drive. Not according
to the Justice Department. The case of Zacarias Moussaoui highlights another
disturbing example of how key intelligence that would have prevented September
11th was purposefully withheld from well-intentioned FBI agents.

It is now clear that Moussaoui was supposed to have been the fifth hijacker on
board flight 93 that crashed in southwest Pennsylvania. He was absent from that
role due to being placed in detention on minor immigration charges on August
17, 2001, and cheered from his Sherburne County jail cell as the attack unfolded
on that fateful day.

Moussaoui, a 33-year-old French national, lived in London for 9 years, a follower
of radical Islamic cleric and MI5 lovechild Abu Qatada, before receiving $15,000
in bank transfers from known associates of the September 11 suicide hijackers.
He then set off for the Pan Am International Flight Academy in Eagen, just
outside Minneapolis. Once there, Moussaoui only sought training in making turns
- not take-offs and landings - and specifically asked about flying over New York
air space. Moussaoui made it clear that he was there to learn how to pilot a 747-
400, despite the fact that he had only been trained on a single-engine Cessna
and was relatively incompetent as a student. His instructor, a former military pilot,
urgently briefed Minnesota Congressman James L. Oberstar and other officials
concerning his suspicions and directly warned the FBI, "Do you realize that a 747
loaded with fuel can be used as a bomb?"%°

The FBI officials in turn promptly warned the Federal Aviation Administration,
who took no action and saw no reason to check scores of other flight schools
where Middle Eastern men were seeking flight training. Local FBI agents were
not so incompetent. They seized Moussaoui's computer in mid-August. As
Moussaoui, now under arrest and scrutiny, told FBI and INS agents that he
"always wanted to fly a big plane,"° Minnesota FBI officials begged the Justice
Department in Washington for approval to open up the hard drive of his computer
under the Foreign Intelligence Surveillance Act.

Concern about Moussaoui reached the top echelons of the FBI, prompting a
flurry of unusual meetings between agents and bureau lawyers trying to secure a
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special intelligence warrant. A French intelligence report clearly implicated
Moussaoui with an Algerian terrorist group and a trip to Afghanistan (where he is
believed to have attended one of bin Laden's training camps). The French
warned the US about his Al-Qaeda links on two occasions, September 1st and
September 5th. According to an account of that meeting in Le Monde, U.S.
participants said Moussaoui's case was in the hands of the immigration
authorities and was not a matter for the FBI. The French also warned British MI5
intelligence about Moussasoui, highlighting the fact that the Abu Qatada
meetings were also attended by Djamel Beghal, a 36-year-old Algerian who
moved to London from France in 1997 and was arrested in Dubai in July 2001 for
allegedly being part of a plot to blow up the American embassy in Paris. French
requests to MI5 for Moussasoui to be placed under surveillance were completely
ignored.

The Justice Department shut the lid on the case and refused the FISA request.
Decent FBI agents who actually did their job correctly and wanted to stop
terrorism were outraged. A last gasp effort to deport Moussaoui to Paris, where
French authorities could hold him for as long as three days while they sought a
legal way to search his laptop, was cut short by the events of September 11.

After September 11, it emerged that Moussaoui had direct ties to Al-Qaeda
operatives in Malaysia, home to the consulting firm where he claimed to work.
The FBI now, albeit too late, had a search warrant for Moussaoui's hard drive.
They discovered a flight simulation software program plus a multitude of
information concerning wind currents, jetliners and crop-dusting airplanes. The
information was considered sufficiently alarming that FBI officials requested the
immediate downing of all crop-dusting aircraft, fearing that terrorists might be
plotting to use them for a chemical or biological attack.®

In mid-December 2001, Moussaoui became the first person indicted for
involvement in the events of Sept. 11, charged with conspiring with bin Laden
and Al-Qaeda. Although the trial is still ongoing, Moussaoui faces the death
penalty. Many law enforcement officials insist that a more aggressive probe of
Moussaoui's activities, when syndicated with intelligence already in their
possession, would have yielded sufficient information concerning the impending
plot, that it could have been prevented.

George W. Bush Prevents Investigation of Al-Qaeda

President George W. Bush threatened FBI agents with arrest if they didn't cease
investigation of Al-Qaeda two months prior to September 11. This was partly due
to indirectly protecting a strategic interest in Saudi Arabian oil reserves, but
serves to highlight the existence of an even darker agenda.

3 ‘FBI imposes new restrictions on crop-dusters’ — CNN — September 23 2001 -
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A secret FBI document, 1991 WF213589, released from the Washington field
office, was leaked by disgruntled FBI agents. It details how the FBI were ordered
to discontinue investigation into members of the bin Laden family and WAMY
(World Association of Muslim Youth) even though both networks had direct links
to terrorism. Just weeks after the September 11 attacks, Pakistan and India
expelled WAMY operatives with India stating that the Saudi-based WAMY was
funding the militant Students Islamic Movement of India, which has provided
support to Pakistani-backed terrorists linked to bombings in Kashmir. The
Philippines military has also accused WAMY of funding Muslim insurgency. It
also emerged in a January 2002 BBC Newsnight feature that WAMY spoke
glowingly of bin Laden in their own educational pamphlets and advocated his
ideals. When confronted with this documentation, a WAMY representative
became noticeably apprehensive and provided a poor defense of his
organization’s link with terrorist cells such as Al-Qaeda. This was after Nouredine
Miladi, the head of WAMY's London office protested his organization’s innocence
by stating, "we seek social change through education and cooperation."*? It
appears as if that education was fundamentalist in nature and the only
cooperation was between WAMY and known terror outfits.

[INSERT FIG 5.3] [CAPTION: The FBI was ordered to "back off" investigation of members of the
bin Laden family and WAMY who they were linked with. WAMY was known to be funding terrorist
cells as far back as the early 1990's. This policy was enforced even more strictly after current
President George W. Bush took office.]

Abdullah bin Laden and Omar bin Laden had helped run WAMY's operation right
up to 2000 and beyond, Abdullah was the U.S. director. They lived together in
Falls Church, just outside Washington, conveniently close to WAMY's basement
offices. So why were the FBI, according to a high placed member of a US
intelligence agency, told to "back off" investigating these groups?

“I received a phone call from a high-placed member of a US intelligence agency. He tells me that
while there's always been constraints on investigating Saudis, under George Bush it's gotten
much worse. After the elections, the agencies were told to "back off" investigating the Bin Ladens
and Saudi royals, and that angered agents...FBI headquarters told us they could not comment on
our findings. A spokesman said: "There are lots of things that only the intelligence community
knows and that no-one else ought to know.”*

Saudi Arabia, the supposed ‘sworn enemy’ of Osama bin Laden, handed £200
million to bin Laden in ‘protection money,’ in exchange for a promise that bin
Laden would not attack Saudi targets. The nerve center of the Al-Qaeda network
and its financial resources are based in Saudi Arabia and Pakistan, two staunch
allies of the US. Since it's currently in vogue to support these two military
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dictatorships, their links to Al-Qaeda terrorism were and continue to be
completely ignored. Fifteen of the nineteen alleged hijackers were Saudis.

The CIA’s cosy relationship with Saudi Arabia ensured that the FBI's attempted
arrest of a Saudi Al-Qaeda cell in 1998 was prevented. The group, led by two
known terrorists, was issued with alias passports, allowing them to escape, by
the Saudi royals, again the supposed ‘sworn enemy’ of Osama bin Laden. This
was reported by Robert Baer, a former case officer in the CIA's directorate of
operations. He also learned of a "spectacular terrorist operation” that was being
planned and would take place shortly. Baer passed the information on to the CIA
who, in line with not wanting to upset the Saudis, did nothing. Baer’s January
2002 book, See No Evil, which further documents the CIA’s lenience on Saudi-
backed terrorists, contains heavily blacked out portions by order of, you guessed
it, the CIA.

According to Bill Gertz of the Washington Times, only five CIA analysts were
assigned to study Al-Qaeda at the time of the attack. This, despite a National
Commission on Terrorism report released in 2000, which urged closer infiltration
noting that there were no human intelligence sources inside groups like bin
Laden's Al-Qaeda. This was not an ‘intelligence failure,’ it was a policy directive.
Of course, the policy of holding intelligence agents back from going after Al-
Qaeda was merely to keep the compartmentalized well-intentioned investigators
in line. The inner circle of the FBI and CIA who were about to sit back and watch
the attacks take place, were well aware of every development of the plot. They
weren’t about to let anyone get in the way of it. Keep your friends close, keep
your ‘enemies’ even closer.

Another attempt to infiltrate Al-Qaeda was blocked just a few months before
September 11 by high-level FBI officials,

A special agent in an FBI field office was told by a confidential informant that he had been invited
to a commando training course at a camp operated by Osama bin Laden's al Qaeda organization
in Afghanistan. According to two people with knowledge of the events, the agent relayed the
informant's remarks to supervisors in the field office, who passed the information to FBI
headquarters in Washington, where it was referred to the Osama bin Laden unit in the bureau's
Counterterrorism Division.**

The Justice Department and the FBI were not interested in pursuing the
opportunity because they deemed it illegal. Excuse me, but since when was the
world of intelligence known for its honorable policy of playing by the book? The
FBI and Justice Department didn’t approve the operation because they had been
told to protect Al-Qaeda or lose their careers and perhaps more.

Lawyer Michael Wildes offered FBI agents 14,000 documents relating to Saudi-
backed terrorism after he represented one of the Khobar Towers bombers. The
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agents told Wildes they were not permitted to read the documents and blankly
refused to obtain information that could have provided groundbreaking
revelations concerning the international terrorist underground scene, including Al-
Qaeda. Wildes states,

"They're (the FBI) cut off at the hip sometimes by supervisors or given shots that are being called
from Washington at the highest levels...You see a difference between the rank-and-file counter-
intelligence agents, who are regarded by some as the motor pool of the FBI, who drive following
diplomats, and the people who are getting the shots called at the highest level of our government,
who have a different agenda - it's unconscionable."*®

One such agent, Robert Wright, grew indignant at this travesty and has filed a
judicial complaint with the Justice Department's Office of Inspector General and
Office of Professional Responsibility. The agent is represented by David
Schippers, a pivotal player in the Clinton impeachment proceedings, being
investigative counsel for the House Judiciary Committee. Schippers was
responsible for all investigations under the impeachment inquiry.

Before September 11th, Schippers represented a group of FBI agents who were
seething because their superiors had pulled them off terrorism related
investigations. The agents told Schippers that there was going to be a massive
attack on lower Manhattan by the end of the year. Schippers frantically tried to
arrange a meeting with Attorney General John Ashcroft right up until a month
before the attack. Ashcroft made it clear to his underlings that he was not
interested in the information and Schippers was rebuffed again and again.

Wright was jointly represented by Judicial Watch, who stated,

“Based on the evidence, the FBI Special Agent believes that if certain investigations had been
allowed to run their courses, Osama bin Laden’s network might have been prevented from
committing the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks which resulted in the deaths of nearly 5,000
innocents.”*®

In a May 30 National Press Club conference, Robert Wright tearfully apologized
to the relatives of the victims of 9/11 after he detailed the numerous instances
where he had been impeded by his superiors from conducting terrorism
investigations. However, these revelations only scratch the surface of what
Wright has included in his unpublished book. He is under an FBI gag order which
could see his imprisonment if he reveals highly sensitive information. Wright only
went public in the first place to avoid being bumped off. Compare his treatment to
that of Colleen Rowley, general counsel in the FBI Minneapolis office, who was
afforded free speech and whistle-blower protection. Rowley released a watered
down report full of ‘intelligence failures’ and to be sure she was purposefully
brought out to act as a shill when the prior knowledge issue broke in the
mainstream media in May 2002. For the first few days after the story broke, the
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government was in deep trouble, scrabbling around for excuses. At that point
they hyped up Rowley and her information acted as a steam valve — the
government were able to manage the story and it dissipated soon thereafter.
Judicial Watch Chairman Larry Klayman described Rowley’s evidence as, "a
cover your derriere, PR maneuver."’

Wright told of terrorist training camps in Chicago and Kansas with links to the
1995 Oklahoma City bombing that he was on the verge of closing down in 1998.
The FBI higher-ups took him off the case. He discussed money laundering
operations with links to Hamas (Likud) and Al-Qaeda that he was on the verge of
cracking before again being taken off the case,

The motive for this conduct his simple and quite disturbing," Wright charged. He said that by
preventing the criminal prosecution of the subjects of their intelligence gathering "these
intelligence agents avoided the new and additional work that would be required..." He said once
these agents had a case going, "they would 'milk it' for years, not taking on any additional work."
They regarded Wright and others who wanted to prosecute suspects "as a threat to their job
security." The net result, according to the lawsuit, was that "the FBI was merely %athering
intelligence so they would know who to arrest when a terrorist attack occurred.”

Exactly a year after the attacks on New York and Washington, Judicial Watch
issued a press release which stated that the FBI were still preventing prosecution
of terrorists,

SA Wright points to recent misconduct and falsifications of wiretap warrant applications by FBI
agents (signed-off by the former FBI Director, Louis Freeh) to the Foreign Intelligence
Surveillance Act (FISA) Court. Prior to September 11th, SA Wright alleged FBI intelligence agents
lied and hid vital records from criminal agents for the purpose of obstructing his criminal
investigation of the terrorists in order to protect their “subjects,” and prolong their intelligence
operations. SA Wright was stunned to learn recently that some of the FBI intelligence agents that
had stalled and obstructed his criminal investigations of terrorists in Chicago had also lied to the
judges of the FISA Court in Washington, DC.*

In addition, the former head of the American visa bureau in Jeddah, Saudi
Arabia, Michael Springman, was consistently ordered by high level State
Department officials to issue visas to unqualified applicants. These ‘'unqualified
applicants' were terrorists operating on behalf of Osama bin Laden. Despite bitter
complaints to the General Accounting Office, the Inspector General's office and
the Bureau of Diplomatic Security, in the same vein as Sen. Bob Graham, he
was stonewalled.

The Pet Hijackers
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Khalid al-Mihdhar and Nawaf al-Hazmi, both of whom were part of the hijack
team that took over flight AA77 and crashed it into the Pentagon, were named as
terrorists by the CIA nearly two years before September 11. Accordingly, they
were issued with multi-level visas which enabled them to open bank accounts,
obtain drivers licenses, enroll in flight schools and leave and re-enter the USA at
will. When Almihdhar’s visa expired in June 2001, after he had been linked to the
bombers of the USS Cole, the State Department issued him a new one.

Both hijackers, while being closely monitored by the CIA, were allowed to leave
the States to attend a January 2000 Al-Qaeda meeting in Kuala Lumpur.
Surveillance was then passed over to the Malaysian Special Branch who
compiled a detailed dossier on the two individuals which was then passed back
to the CIA as al-Mihdhar and al-Hazmi re-entered the United States,

Yet astonishingly, the CIA did nothing with this information. Agency officials didn’t tell the INS,
which could have turned them away at the border, nor did they notify the FBI, which could have
covertly tracked them to find out their mission.*

So the CIA identify two known terrorists, issue them with visas, allow them to
leave the country to attend a terrorist meeting, and allow them back into the
country without apprehension. Lower level FBI agents were astounded at this
negligent policy. They charged that if the CIA had passed the information on,
they would have been able to crack the entire nineteen-man hijack plot that
unfolded on 9/11. Again - the mainstream media report all this and the
government admits to it. Yet the spin is always ‘we screwed up’ ‘it was an
intelligence failure’ — if this is the case then why has not one senior CIA or FBI
official been fired as a result?

According to an unnamed FBI agent, he too had identified the future hijackers as
terrorists long before September 11 but when he sought permission to track them
down within the U.S. his superiors told him to cease his investigation and
aggressively shut the lid on the case. The irate agent chillingly retorted,

“Whatever has happened to this — some day someone will die — and wall or not, the public will
not understand why we were not more effective and throwing every resource we had at certain
‘problems’. Let’s hope the FBI's national security law unit will stand behind their decisions then,
especially since the biggest threat to us now, Osama Bin Laden, is getting the most
‘protection’.”*

Furthermore, in another deplorable development, it emerged that after the Al-
Qaeda summit in Malaysia, which the CIA viewed on videotape, al-Mihdhar and
al-Hazmi moved in with an FBI informant who helped them open bank accounts,
enabling them to subsequently enroll in flight school training in preparation for the
9/11 plot,

40 ‘The Hijackers We Let Escape’ - Michael Isikoff and Daniel Klaidman — Newsweek — June 4 2002 — available at
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Upon leaving Malaysia, Almihdhar and Alhazmi went to San Diego, where they took flight-school
lessons. In September 2000, the two moved into the home of a Muslim man who had befriended
them at the local Islamic Center. The landlord regularly prayed with them and even helped one

open a bank account. He was also, sources tell NEWSWEEK, a “tested” undercover “asset” who
had been working closely with the FBI office in San Diego on terrorism cases related to Hamas.*

The FBI office in San Diego knew that the terrorists were living with the
informant. The case agent called the informant on several occasions and was
always forewarned when the two were in the room and able to hear the
conversation. The terrorist's Saudi nationality, in alliance with President Bush’s
“back off” directive, ensured al-Mihdhar and al-Hazmi were left alone. This was a
full year before 9/11 and is yet another smoking gun to confirm the plot could
have been unraveled if not for criminal protection of terrorists by the upper
echelons of the CIA and FBI.

Another of the hijackers who was allegedly (we have to use that term because
there is no proof any of the named hijackers were on board the planes) on Flight
77 that hit the Pentagon, was Hani Hanjour. From 1996 onwards Hanjour was
enrolled in flight school training in Phoenix Arizona. It was here that a paid FBI
informant, Aukai Collins, was asked to monitor Hanjour and his fellow Arab
associates.

Collins maintained his work entailed that the FBI had an extensive dossier on
Hanjour,

Collins said the FBI knew Hanjour lived in Phoenix, knew his exact address, his phone number
and even what car he drove. "They knew everything about the guy," said Collins..."When | said
there's this short, skinny Arab guy whao's part of this crowd, drives such-and-such a car, |
asgdu‘rlged that they would then, you know, start tracing him and see who his contacts were," he
said.

So we know the FBI were closely monitoring Hanjour for at least five years
before 9/11. What is more, they also knew that Hanjour was conducting test
flights in the vicinity of the World Trade Center and the Pentagon in the months
leading up to the attack,

Law enforcement officials tell (CBS reporter) Stewart they have now confirmed that Hanjour
rented small aircrafts in the Maryland and New York areas three weeks before the attacks. They
say he made practice flights using those aircrafts in the vicinity of both the Pentagon and the
World Trade Center towers. The purpose of the flights, officials surmise, was to study landmarks
and examine possible approach routes to the targets.**
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Let us recap. We have an Arab enrolled at a flight school who the FBI see as
dangerous enough to justify monitoring him for five years. They know where he
lives, his phone number and even what car he drives. The FBI thinks he could
possibly be a member of Al-Qaeda. This same suspected terrorist then charters
a plane and goes snooping in and around the WTC and Pentagon. A three-year-
old could connect these dots, even independently of the voluminous other
evidence confirming the WTC and Pentagon as targets.

Hanjour wasn’t the only hijacker to perform a 9/11 dry run right in the face of
American intelligence. Actor James Woods took a flight from Boston on August 1
2001. Once in the air, Woods noticed a group of Arab men who had no hand
luggage acting strangely. Woods said the FBI had warned him not to disclose
details but he went on the record as saying that at least two of the four
individuals fit the description of two of the named hijackers (one possibly being
Atta). Their behavior suggested to Woods that the men were planning something.
Woods informed the flight attendant who eventually informed the FAA. The FAA,
who were warned from numerous different sources that a plot involving hijacking
was likely to occur in 2001, did nothing with the information. They refused to pass
it on to any law enforcement or intelligence agency. The FBI only investigated the
incident after September 11.

Common Knowledge

If a freshman school kid knew about the imminent September 11th attack, then
how on earth could the biggest intelligence agencies in the world not know? An
MSNBC reporter visited a Brooklyn school to disprove an unreliable urban myth
but actually confirmed an amazing story.

On September 6 — five days before the attack — Antoinette DiLorenzo, who teaches English as
a second language to a class of Pakistani immigrants, led a class discussion about world events.
She asked a freshman (his name has been withheld): “What are you looking at?” The youth was
peering out the third floor window toward lower Manhattan. After he made the remark about the
World Trade Center not being there next week, the teacher didn’t immediately think much of it,
though it stuck in her mind.*

Note that the remark does not just broadly state that the towers will be attacked,
but specifically that they will disappear. This came in the middle of a heated class
debate at the New Utrecht High School. The boy remains unnamed, the only
details being that he was a 15-year-old Palestinian. It later emerged that the
same boy made a further prediction after September 11. He predicted that a
plane would crash in New York on November 12. That very day, American
Airlines flight 587 crashed in Queens after both its engines ‘fell off’ its wings in an
‘accident’. The FBI was told of the boy’s warning before the ‘accident’ but didn’t
follow up on it.

5 Trade Center warning baffles police’ — Jonathan Alter —- MSNBC — October 12 2001 — available at
http://www.propagandamatrix.com/Trade Center_warning_baffles police.htm




Jeffrey Scott Shapiro, the journalist who broke the story before MSNBC got hold
of it, was able to confirm that the FBI were investigating two other strikingly
similar predictions of catastrophe on 9/11,

On Sept. 10, 2001, a sixth-grade student of Middle Eastern descent in Jersey City, N.J., said
something that alarmed his teacher at Martin Luther King Jr. Elementary School. "Essentially, he
warned her to stay away from lower Manhattan because something bad was going to happen,"
said Sgt. Edgar Martinez, deputy director of police services for the Jersey City Police Department.
Initially, the Jersey City rumor was met with some controversy. The New York Times called it an
unsubstantiated rumor, and both the Daily News and the Jersey Journal quoted a board of
education official who denied that the boy had made any reference to the Sept. 11 attacks at all.
Despite their reports, Martinez said the FBI-JTTF took over the matter for further investigation. On
Sept. 11, NYPD school-safety officers interrogated a Middle Eastern boy at Health Opportunities
High School in the Bronx who had made similar comments that alarmed his teacher. Catie
Marshall said the boy told his peers something as the school was being evacuated on Sept. 11.
"He warned them not to ride any city buses because he had been told at his mosque the week
before to stay off all public transportation for a while," said one NYPD officer from the
investiggting 40th Precinct. "He said it wouldn't be safe." The FBI-JTTF since has taken over the
matter.

Shapiro learned that many other students attending the New Utrecht school had
approached teachers with their own stories of prior knowledge and large
numbers had conveniently decided to bring their cameras to school on
September 11. Shapiro tried in vain to have his story covered in the mass media.
The New York Times and many others refused to touch it and Shapiro’s last word
on the matter was that the FBI had shut down the case.

This is just one of numerous smoking guns to suggest that the Muslim
community across the world was aware of the impending terrorist attack. Islamic
calendars circulated in the months preceding September 2001 depicting a plane
crashing into lower Manhattan. The FBI confirmed that many Middle Easterners
were warned not to go near lower Manhattan on September 11. The plot was
even the subject of everyday street gossip in Cairo Egypt in August 2001.
Everybody knew. Are we to believe the most sophisticated intelligence agencies
in the world didn't? New York police officers investigating these ‘rumors,’
including evidence that a large number of Arabs working in the WTC didn’t show
up for work that day, stated that leads of prior knowledge were so ‘overwhelming’
that they didn’t know where to start. Osama bin Laden himself publicly stated that
all his associates should return to Afghanistan by September 10.

[INSERT FIG 5.4] [CAPTION: There are countless examples of posters, advertisements, album
covers and television shows which depicted an attack on the World Trade Center before
September 11 2001. This CD cover circulated in July 2001.]

An anonymous listener to a Cayman Islands radio station wrote a letter two

* prior Knowledge of Sept. 11 Not Just Urban Legend’ - Jeffrey Scott Shapiro — Insight Magazine — September 10 2002
— available at http://www.propagandamatrix.com/prior_knowledge of sept 11 not just urban legend.htm




weeks before the attack which was passed on to a Cayman government official.
The letter stated that agents of Osama bin Laden had entered the US and were
about to carry out an attack via an airline or airlines.

Some of the alleged hijackers were reported to have attended strip clubs the
night before the attack (there’s that staunch fundamentalism and highly
sophisticated planning in evidence), where they bragged to the bartender that
“America’s going to see blood, wait till tomorrow.”’

Marwan Al Shehhi, who piloted the second plane into the World Trade Center,
could not contain himself about his role in the plot, bragging to anyone that would
listen of his upcoming ‘martyrdom’ while living in Hamburg, Germany. This came
to light during the trial of Mounir El Motassadeq, an alleged Al-Qaeda
conspirator. Al Shehhi told a librarian that thousands would die in an attack on
the World Trade Center. This didn’t seem to concern the CIA at the time.

A 29-year-old Iranian deportee phoned US police and the White House from his
German cell to warn of an imminent attack on the World Trade Center. The
Lower Saxony Justice Ministry has confirmed the man warned of the impending
series of terrorist attacks, but had not been believed. They refused to confirm
exactly when the calls were made, but it was before September 11th. The man
warned of imminent attacks on the World Trade Center that would “change the
world order” — the White House hung up.

This is another example of how virtually the entire Arab world was aware of the
fact that the WTC had been targeted for immediate destruction. Time after time,
U.S. authorities refused to follow up on the information.

Warnings From Israel

The Israeli intelligence agency Mossad warned the CIA and the FBI in August
2001 that terrorists linked to Osama bin Laden were planning large scale terrorist
attacks on highly visible targets of commerce and military, to take place
imminently. The CIA completely ignored the warning despite the fact that it
correlated with similar urgent warnings from a multitude of other sources,

The Telegraph has learnt that two senior experts with Mossad,